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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Mayor and City Aldermen
City of Lexington
Lexington, Tennessee 38351

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cily of Lexington, Tennessee, (the City), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We did not audit the the financial statements of
the Lexington Electric System, which is both a major fund and 60%, 62%, and 78% respectively, of the assets, net
position, and revenues of the business-type activities.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility it to express opinions on these financial stalements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Lexington Electric System, which represent 60%, 62%, and 78% respeclively, of the
assets, net position, and revenues of the business-type aclivities. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose reporl has been furnished to us, and in our apinion, in so far as it relates to the amounis included for
Lexington Electric System, is based solely on the report of other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America and the standards applicable to financial
audils contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
slatements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or efror. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
aclivities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial posilion, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparisons for the General Fund and the General Purpose School Fund for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants * Tennessee Society of Certified Public Accountants



Emphasis of Matter

As described in Nole 4.F., the Cily has adopied the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) Statement No. 67, The Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement 25. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America require that the managementl's discussion
and analysis and the schedule of funding progress on pages 4 through 9 and page 62 through 63 be presenled to
supplement the basic financial statements, Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infoermation in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepled in the Uniled States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consislency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we oblained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducled for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial slatements that collectively comprise
the City's basic financial slatements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules, and other supplemental information are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are nol a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial stalements and schedules, and other supplemental
information are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial stalements. Such information, except for that
which has been marked “uaudited”, has been subjected lo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and other supplemental information, except for that which has
been marked "unaudited”, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory section and the AWWA WLCC Free Water Audit Software: Reporting Waorksheet — “unaudited”
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial stalements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 15, 2014, on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is o
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporling and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not o provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Thal report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the Cily's

internai control over financial reporting and compliance.
(%\. 7 w / p M :

October 15, 2014



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Lexington, Tennessee, will offer readers of the City's financial
statements a narrative overview and review of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
the City's financial statements.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 10 and 11) provide information about the activities of the City as a
whole and present a longer-term view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements start on page 12.
For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most
significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the
City acts as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the City as a whaole begins on page 10. The following is one of the most important
questions asked about the City's finances, “Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the
year's activities?' The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about
the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The statement of nef position presents financial information on ali of the City's assets, liabilities, deferred
inflowsfoutfiows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases and
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported for some items that will only resuit in cash flows of future fiscal periods.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of
activities:

- Governmental activities — Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the
general administration, police, fire, public works, health, welfare, and recreation, economic
development and debt service. Property taxes, local sales taxes, and state shared revenue
finance most of these activities.

- Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City's gas, water and sewer, and electric operations
are reported here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds



Our analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 12. The fund financial statements begin on page 12
and provide detailed information about the most significant funds (not the City as a whole). Some funds
are required to be established by State law. However, the City Board establishes other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes. The City's two kinds of funds — governmental and
proprietary — use different accounting approaches.

- Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-
end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method
called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that
can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs.
We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a
reconciliation at the bottormn of the fund financial statements.

- Proprietary Funds — When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the
same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a compenent of proprietary funds) are the
same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows

The City as Trustee — The City maintains two types of fiduciary funds for which it is the trustee or
fiduciary. The agency fund is used to account for student activity of the local city school. The pension
trust fund accounts for pension contributions, benefits, and distributions. Both of these funds are reported
in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position page 32, and the Statement of Changes in the
Fiduciary Net Position for the Pension Trust fund is on page 33. We exclude these activities from the
City's other financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The
City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 34 - 61.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its
obligations to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be
found on pages 62 - 63 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are
presented following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual
statements and schedules can be found on pages 64 - 86 of this report.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government’s financial position. In the case of
the City of Lexington, assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $75,027,771 at
June 30, 2014.

CITY OF LEXINGTON'S NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assels $ 751945 § 7002045 § 23488589 § 25232151 § 31008045 § 32234196
Capital Assets 28,098,175 28,818,537 71,120,490 68,963,205 99,218,665 97,781,742
Total Assels 35,617,631 35,820,582 94 609,079 94,195,356 130,226,710 130,015,938
Laong term liabilities 13,175,424 14,159 078 33,282,370 34,892,806 46,457,794 49,051,884
Other liabilities 370,940 407,683 6,242,933 6,597,171 6,613,873 7,004,854
Total liabilities 13,546,364 14,566,761 39,525,303 41,489,977 53,071,667 56,056,738
Deferred inflows of
of resources 2127272 2.136,686 - - 2,127,272 2,136,686
Net Position:
Net investment in
capital assets 16,325,931 15,955,050 41,542,189 40,452,111 57,868,120 56,407,161
Restricted 256,285 245,029 1,257,873 1,252,039 1,514,158 1,497,068
Unrestricted 3,361,779 2,917 056 12,283,714 11,001,229 15,645,493 13,918,285
Total Net Position $ 19943895 & 19117135 § 55083776 § 52705379 § 750277711 5 74822514

There are prior period adjustments that affected both the Governmental and Business-Type Activities.
For additional information see Note 4.G.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with
revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The
reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the
City's taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-
financing through fees and grants.

Business-type Activities
The changes in business-type activities net position are described below:

- The City's Gas System had an increase in net position of $295,316 which is compared to an
increase in the prior year of $260,582.



- The City's Water Systems Fund operated at a profit of $529,500 compared to a profit in the
prior year of $653,807.
- The City's Electric Department had a profit of $1,664,265 compared to a profit in the prior

year of $1,5563,201.

The following table provides a summary of the City's operations for the year ended June 30, 2014, with
comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Revenues:

Program Revenues
Fees, fines and
charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions

Capital grants and

contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Indieu of property taxes
Public service taxes
Sales taxes
Investment earnings
Gain(loss} on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:

General government
and administration

Public safety

Public works

Health, Welfare and Recreation

Economic development

Interest on long-term debt

Bond issue cosis

Paying agent fees

Water Systems

Natural Gas

Electric Department

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net position
before transfers

Transfers

Increase (decrease} in net position

Net position at beginning of year,
as onginally stated

Prior period adjustment

Inventory adjusiment

Net position at beginning of year,
as restated

Net position at end of year

CITY OF LEXINGTON'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities TOTAL
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 1576503 5 1610799 § 60917240 S 58,667,109 S 62,483,743 § 60277908
8,287,805 8,378,426 - - 8,287,805 8.378.426
156,047 46,849 113,423 41,391 269,470 88,240
2,171,798 2,128 436 - - 2,171,798 2,128,436
98,410 99,669 - - 98.410 99.669
133,521 125,151 - 133.521 125,151
4,238,666 4,249,526 - s 4,238 666 4,249 526
46,376 50,706 97,105 110,750 143,481 161,456
17,100 9,667 {252) (24,602) 16,848 (14,935)
350,432 143,985 122,342 188,279 472,774 332.264
17,076,658 16,843,214 51,249,858 58,982,927 78,326,516 75,826,141
1,382,942 1,245,273 - - 1,382,942 1,245,273
3,020,244 2,829,527 - - 3,020,244 2,829,527
1,791,249 1,724,735 - - 1,791,249 1,724,735
10,760,582 10,557,079 - - 10,760,582 10,557,079
71,730 102,817 - - 71,730 102,817
315,765 366,817 - - 315,765 366,817
- 2,185 - - - 2,185
1,225 5,660 - - 1,225 5,660
- - 7.255,158 5,210,073 7,255,158 5,210,073
- - 5,327,468 5,840,825 5,327 468 5,840,925
- - 45,183,343 44,535,987 45,183,343 44,535,987
17,343,737 16,834,093 57,765,069 55,586,985 75,109,706 72,421,078
(267,079) 9121 3,483,889 3,395,942 3,216,810 3,405,063
094 808 928,352 {994,808) {928,352} - -
727,729 937,473 2,489,081 2,467,590 3,216,810 3,405,063
19,117,135 18,385,992 52,705,379 50,521,596 71,822,514 68,907,568
99,401 (217.772) (110,684) (283,807) {11,283) (501,579)
{270) 11,442 - - (270} 11,442
19,216,266 18,179,662 52,594,695 50,237,789 71,810.961 68,417,451
$ 19943995 S 19117135 S 55083776 5 52705379 & 75027771 S 71822514




THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on page 12)
reported a combined fund balance of $4,961,055 which is 12% above last year’s total of $4,415,810.

The following schedule presents a summary of general, special revenues, debt service and capital project

revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, and the amount and percentage of
increases and decreases in relation to the prior year.

Increase {Decrease)

Percent from

Revenues June 30, 2014 of Total June 30, 2013
Taxes $§ 5912141 3468% % (55,608)
Intergovernmental 9,176,436 53.84% 67,360
Licenses and permits 6,104 0.04% (6,659)
Charges for services 993,710 5.83% (28,811)
Fines and forfeitures 255,910 1.50% (2,094)
Other revenues 701,106 4.11% 203,409
Total Revenues $ 17,045,407 100.00% 8 177,596

Other revenues is inflated in the due to a large amount of insurance recoveries for storm damage.

Increase

Percent (Decrease) from
Expenditures June 30, 2014 of Total June 30, 2013
General government $ 1,035,147 591% § 85,936
Public Safety 2,818,405 16.09% 196,917
Public Works 1,641,458 9.37% 69,122
Health, welfare, and recreation 10,004,283 57.12% 203,564
Economic development 71,730 0.41% (31,087)
Capital outlay 530,814 3.03% {838,730)
Debt Service 1,412,193 8.06% 16,668
Total Expenditures $ 17,514,030 100.00% $ (297,610)

Capital outlay in the prior year included significant building improvements to the schools.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the year the School System revised the budget at various times during the year. The
following funds had expenditures that exceeded budget appropriations: Sales Tax Fund.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of June 2014, the City had $99,218,665 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including
police and fire equipment, buildings, parks facilities, water and sewer lines, natural gas lines, electric plant
and equipment, and various other equipment. This amount represents a net increase (including additions
and deductions) of $1,436,923, or 1.5% above the prior year. Additional information on capital assets is
in Note 3.C.



Debt

At year-end, the City had $45,466,989 in outstanding long-term debt compared to $48,134,745 last year.
Of the total outstanding debt 27% belongs to the Governmental funds, 7% to the Gas Fund, 25% to the
Water Systems Fund, and 41% to the Electric Department

See Note 3.G for additional information.
CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City at
33 1% Street, Lexington, Tennessee.

Sue Wood
City Recorder



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis

Investments

Receivables:
Property taxes
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Grant receivables
Other receivables

Internal balances

Due from other governments

Inventory

Natural gas storage

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Capital assets
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue
Compensaled absences
Long-term liabilities:
Advances from Home Instailation Program
Other post employment benefits
Pension liability
Landfill closure costs
Compensated absences
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF REVENUES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Restricted for:
State Street Aid Fund
Education
School Foed Service
Solid Waste Collection
Police Drug Fund
Debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014
_ Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

] 4,033,398 3 16,982,015 21,015,413
- 158,445 158,445
2,239,027 - 2,239,027
2,051 3,826,769 3,828,820
289,818 118,022 407,840
16,756 413,691 430,447

(2.339) 2,339 -
767,131 - 767,131
26,751 671,350 698,101
- 618,657 618,657
146,863 127,986 274,849
- 569,315 569,315
2,166,471 8,779,789 10,946,260
25,931,704 62,240,701 88,172,405
35,617,631 94,508,079 130,126.710
358,989 4,554 844 4,913,833
- 1,089,443 1,089,443
11,951 - 11,951
- 598,646 598,646
. 297,307 297,307
- 762,889 762,869
- 529,255 529,255
220937 - 220,937
1,182,243 1,624,240 2,806,483
1,046,469 1,844,292 2,890,761
10,725.775 28,224,387 38,950,162
13,546,364 39,525,303 53,071,667
2.127,272 - 2,127,272
16,325,931 41,542,189 57,868,120
42871 - 42,871
109,224 - 109,224
43,275 - 43,275
60,915 - 60,915
- 1,257,873 1,257,873
3,361,779 12,283,714 15,645,493
$ 19,943,995 5 55,083,776 75,027,771

The accompanyling notes are an integral part of these linancial statements.

10
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Grant receivable
Other receivables
Inventory

Due from other governments

Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue - other
Advance from other fund
Due {o other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF REVENUES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Restricted for:

State street aid

School food authority

Drug fund

Solid Waste Collection
Assigned

Special revenue funds

Education

Support services

Capital projects
Unassigned

General fund

General purpose school fund
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

REVENUES AND FUND BALANCES

General
Purpose Other
School Governmental
General Fund Funds Total
§ 2,073,178 $ 1.300943 % 650,277 $ 4,033,398
2,239,027 - - 2,239,027
2,051 - - 2,051
89,199 200,619 - 289,818
4,525 - 12,231 16,756
- - 26,751 26,751
511,509 - 255,622 767,131
25 - 207,685 207,710
131,081 - 15,782 146,863
$ 5,050,585 $ 1.510,562 3 1,168,348 $ 7.729,505
3 80,146 $ - $ 2,237 3 82.383
120,929 98,151 5,959 225,039
- - 11,851 11,951
50,598 - - 50,598
158,720 - 732 159,452
410,393 98.151 20,879 529,423
2.238.027 - - 2,239,027
- - 26,791 26,751
131,081 - 15,782 146,863
- - 42871 42 871
- - 109,224 109,224
- - 60,915 60915
- - 43,275 43275
- - 848,651 848 651
- 290,000 - 290,000
- 6,500 - 6,500
- 103,500 - 103,500
2,270,094 - - 2,270,094
- 1,012,411 - 1.012,411
2,401,175 1,412,411 1,147 468 4,961,055
$ 5.050,595 3 1,510,562 $ 1,168,348 § 7.729505

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET
POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

Total fund balance - total governmental funds $ 4,961,055

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are difierent because.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
current financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the governmental funds balance sheet. 28,098,175

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds 111,755

Accrued interest is not reported in the governmental funds
balance sheet but is recorded for government-wide purposes. (51,566)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, they are not reparted in the
governmental funds balance sheet {13,175,424)

Net position of governmental activities $ 19,943,995

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues

Taxes

Property laxes

Penalty and interest

In lieu of taxes

Sales

Beer tax

Business

Liguour tax

Franchise

Hotel/motel tax

Privilege
Intergovernmental revenues
Licenses and permils
Charges for services
Fines, forfeils, and penalties
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health, welfare, and recreation
Economic development

Capital outlay

Debt service,
Principal payments
Interest payments
Other debi costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Qther financing sources {uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of general capital assels
Total other financing sources {uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, as originally stated

Inventory adjustment

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, as restated

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

General

Purpose Other Total
School Governmantal Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
$ 2,157,647 S - 8 - $ 2,157,647
16,481 - - 16,481
13,552 - - 13,552
1,554,227 - 1,295,190 2,849,417
416,940 - - 416,940
161,047 - - 161,047
. - 130,090 130,090
133,521 - - 133,521
30,954 - - 30,954
2,492 . - 2,492
1,037.211 7.499.,675 639,550 9,176,436
6,104 . - 6,104
134,585 - 859,125 993,710
137,909 - 118,001 255,910
208,896 67,843 424,367 701.106
6,011,566 7,567,518 3,466,323 17,045,407
1,035,147 - 1,035,147
2,751,767 66.638 2,818,405
865,805 - 775,653 1,641,458
516,148 8,707,858 780277 10,004,283
71,730 . . 71,730
428,058 77.830 24,926 530.814
81,763 110,232 898,776 1.090,771
54,895 13,548 251,754 320,197
71 - 1,154 1,225
5,805,384 8,909.468 2,799,178 17.514,030
206.182 {1,341.950) 667,145 (468.623)
1,081,073 1,063,000 1,147,480 3,291,553
(856,000} - {1.440,745) (2.296,745)
14,980 4.350 19,330
240,053 1,063,000 (288.915) 1,014,138
446,235 (278,950} 378,230 545,515
1,954,840 1,691,361 769,509 4,415,810
- 5 (270 (270)
1,964,940 1,691,361 769,239 4,415,540
$ 2,401,175 $ 1.412.411 $ 1,147 469 S 4,961,055
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds £ 545,515

Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the government-wide statlement of activities and
changes in net position, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount of capital assets recorded for the current
period. 530,814

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reporied in the
government-wide statement of activilies and changes in net position,
but they do not require the use of current financial resources.
Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as expenditure
in government funds (1.348,337)

Net effect of asset disposal {2,230)

The repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. However, it has no
effect on net position. 1,090,771

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources; therefore, they are nof reporied
as expenditures in governmental funds. (102,955}

Some property tax will not be collected for several months after the
City's fiscal year end, they are not considered "available” revenues
in the governmental funds. 14,151

Change in net position of governmental activities 3 727,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Taxes
Property taxes - current
Property taxes - delinquent
Penalties and interest
In lieu of taxes:
Lexington Housing Authority
Local sales tax
Local beer tax
Business tax
Franchise tax
Holtel/imotel tax
Privilege tax

Total taxes

Intergovernmental
TVA payments in lieu of laxes
State fire education
State law enforcement grant
Poiice safety grant - alcohol saturation
Police safety grant - alcohol saturation
Palice - COPS
Police - vest grant
Police grant -network coordinator 2013
Paolice grant -network coordinator 2014
Police grant -high visibility
Police grant - DUI traffic
Police grant - JAG
Police grant - other
Safe routes to school grant
State of Tennessee
- Sales tax allocation
- Telecommunication tax
- Income tax allocation
- Beer tax allocation
- Petroleum special
- Street maintenance
- Excise tax
Grants from Local Governments
- Crimestoppers
- County recreation grant
- Other miscellaneous grants

Total intergovernmental revenues

Licenses and permits
Beer licenses
Building permits
Other permits

Total licenses and permits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative}
$ 2,158,000 5 2,145,000 2,070,261 (74,739)
- - 87,386 87.386
10,000 16,500 16,481 981
12,000 13,552 13,552 -
1,649,445 1,554,600 1.654,227 (373)
412000 412.000 416,940 4,940
225661 170,000 161,047 {8,953}
125660 132,250 133,521 1.271
30,900 31.000 30,954 (46)
2,375 2475 2,492 17
4,526.041 4,476,377 4,486,861 10,484
84,170 86,675 84,858 (1.817)
7,800 7,800 7.800 -
15,600 15,600 15,600 e
10,290 10.280 10,291 1
- - 17,902 17,902
60,000 - - -
13,000 1,700 1,719 19
8415 7.948 7.949 1
20,000 17.940 11,71 (6.209)
- 5,000 4,991 (9}
36,000 24,999 - {24,999)
15,000 15,000 15,000 -
17,500 - - -
- 100,000 86,4684 (13.526)
535,640 535640 546.714 11,074
- - 773 773
30,000 56,863 65,070 8,207
3,820 3.620 3,621 1
15,680 15,665 15,659 (6)
92,684 92,684 92,684 -
5,000 31,548 31.548 -
1,200 1,200 1,200 S
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
5,000 5,000 §.637 637
986.799 1,045,172 1,037,211 {7.9681)
1,000 750 750 -
10,300 4,850 5,019 169
500 335 335 -
11,800 5,835 £,104 169
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative)
Revenues (continued)
Charges for services
Clerk's fees - business tax 30,000 27,000 25,962 {1,038)
Accident report filing fees 3,400 3,400 3,440 40
Maintenace charges for Caywood 85,000 85,000 85,000 -
SOR charges 150 450 750 300
Mowing and lot cleanup 1,000 1,000 1,002 2
Streel repair charges 7,500 10,000 10,212 212
Parks and recreation charges 7,200 7,600 8,219 619
Total charges for services 134,250 134,450 134,585 135
City court fines and costs 145,000 137,500 137,909 409
Other revenues
Interest income 12,000 6,500 6,868 368
Community center revenue 12,000 15,000 15,307 307
Rent income 74,400 74,400 73,201 {1,199)
Sales of cemetery lots 8,000 11,700 11,700 -
insurance recoveries 15,000 - 46,293 46,293
Sales of other materials 24,000 24,000 24,571 571
Donations - - 24,891 24 891
Miscellaneous income 8,000 7.680 6,065 (1.615)
Total other revenue 153,400 139,280 208,896 69,616
Total revenues 5,957,290 5,938,714 6,011,566 72,852
Expenditures
General government
General
Salaries 70,111 67,400 67,293 107
Employee benefils 348,210 328,100 326,406 1,694
Memberships 2,300 2,300 2,164 136
Electicn payroll - 7,500 7.301 199
Operating expenses 4,500 2,000 1,760 240
Other operating expenses 23,250 20,750 15,646 5,104
Insurance 135,200 135,200 131,630 3,570
Total general 583,571 563,250 552,200 11,050
Judicial
Salaries 9,128 9,129 9,128 1
Totai judicial 9,128 9,129 9,128 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative)
Expenditures {continued)
General government {continued)
City recorder
Salaries 209,918 209 500 209 332 168
Employee benefits 31,300 31,200 ap 287 1,013
Insurance 360 64 361 3
Office expense 10,900 12,500 10,164 2,338
Professional fees 49,500 47,450 47 316 134
Membership and dues 400 450 402 48
Repair and maintenance 9,300 5,850 34,667 (26,817}
Other operating expenses 132,198 127,850 127,155 695
Capital autiay 346.950 228.250 - 228.250
Total city recorder 790.826 663.514 459.684 203.830
City Hall
Utilitties 16,080 14.680 14,135 545
Total general government 1,399,605 1.250.573 1,035,147 215.426
Public safety
Police department
Salary 1,419,122 1322 600 1.294 512 28,088
Employee bensafits 257,350 242,250 236,729 5521
Ulilities 32000 33.000 29.086 3914
Repair and maintenance 28 800 28 800 21.210 7,590
Memberships and dues 700 Boo 750 50
Supplies 32,650 32,250 24124 8,126
Small items of equipment - - 6,138 (6,138)
Uniforms and clothing 11,200 11,200 8,509 2,691
Gas, cil and diesel 90,000 81,500 79,425 2,075
Insurance 2,970 3,000 2,993 7
Equipment rental 7.750 8,250 7.663 587
Office expense 44,750 40,850 36,095 4,755
Other grant expenses 91,455 84,883 61,074 23,809
Capital outlay 21,300 - 201,322 {201.322)
Total police department 2.040.047 1,889,383 2,009,630 {120,247)
Fire department
Salaries 639,501 640,601 633,661 7.140
Employee benefils 104,650 103,250 101,920 1,330
Volunteer {iremen 5,000 4,140 4,140 -
Volunteer firemen benefits 4,853 4,853 4,254 599
Utilities 40,000 35,100 34,004 1,006
Memberships 170 170 120 50
Repair and maintenance 34,600 34,100 35,71 {1,631}
Supplies 4,300 5,500 4,274 1,228
Clothing and uniflorms 4,800 4,900 4,848 52
Gas, oil, diesel 10,000 10,000 9,961 39
Insurance 1,220 1,220 1,178 44
Public relations 500 - - -
Travel 2,000 2,000 1,256 744
Equipment rent 3,000 3.000 2,871 129
Small items of equipment 15,178 25,205 34,802 {9.597)
Capital outlay 9,750 - 2,470 (2.470)
Total fire department 879,519 874,229 875.578 {1.339)
Building inspector
Salaries 57,873 57,960 57,837 123
Employee benefits 9,200 8,800 9,287 313
Insurance 90 a0 S0 .
Other operating expenses 5,750 5,300 3,137 2,163
Total building inspector 72,913 72,850 70,351 2.599
Total public safety 2.992.479 2.836.572 2,955,559 (118,987)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statomants.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative}
Expenditures {continued}
Public works
Highways and streets
Salaries 419,600 378,460 377,711 749
Payroll taxes 36,424 31,700 30,811 889
Employee educalion 500 500 - 500
Employee insurance 84,700 77,000 76,416 584
Utilities 11,500 11,300 11,076 224
Street lighting 26,500 33,500 9,833 23,567
Repair and maintenance 240,500 231,000 212,990 18,010
Repair and maintenance - equipment 8,000 13,000 14,259 (1,259)
Clothing and uniforms 4,200 3,850 2,836 1,014
Gas, oil, diese! 45,000 44,000 42,295 1,705
Culverts 1,000 1,000 550 450
Gravel and sand 1,000 1,000 - 1.000
Operaling supplies 11,800 10,000 5,541 4,459
Small items of equipment - - 565 {565}
Insurance 590 1,100 1,069 N
Office supplies 2.700 2,700 2,520 180
Capital outlay - - 22,844 (22 844)
Total highways and strests 894,414 840,110 811,416 28,694
Garage
Repair and maintenance 5,000 2,500 1,141 1,359
Supplies 23,150 21,250 14,595 6,655
Utilities 4,500 5.000 4,802 198
Fuel purchases 17,000 23,000 20,556 2444
Total garage 49.650 51,750 41,094 10.656
Animal control
Contracl tabor 36,312 35,850 35,833 17
Total animal control 36,312 35.850 35,833 17
Sanitation
Landfill closure 5.500 5,500 306 5,194
Total public works 985.676 933,210 888,649 44,561
Health, welfara, and recreation
Appropriations
Library 31,000 31,000 31,000 -
Library utilities 12,000 12,000 11,275 725
RSVP 3,000 3,000 - 3,000
Senior Citizens 11,450 11,450 11,450 -
Rescue Squad utilities 1,000 1,000 737 263
Christmas parade 500 500 500 -
Carl Perkins 1,725 1,725 1,725 -
Lexington scholarship 500 500 500 -
JACOA 1,900 1,900 1,900 -
Hope utilities 6,300 6,300 6,285 15
Project graduation 1,200 4,200 1,045 155
Airport 27,500 27,500 27,500 -
Veterans cemetery 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Other appropriations 4,100 4,100 1,906 2,194
Total appropriations 112,175 112,175 105,823 65,352

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financiai statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (continued}
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative)
Expenditures (continued)
Health, welfare, and recreation {continued)
Museum
Salaries 18,800 18,800 18,541 259
Employee benefits 1,438 1,438 1.418 20
Unemployment insurance a0 100 95 5
Public retations 500 500 - 500
Utilities 6,600 5,500 5,346 154
Repair and maintenance 1.000 1.000 125 875
Telephone 650 800 792 8
Security system 550 550 534 16
Operating cosls 500 500 107 393
Janitorial costs 200 350 268 82
Total museum 30,328 29.538 27,226 2,312
Civic center
Salaries 13,200 10.000 8,583 1.417
Emgployee benefits 1.010 765 857 108
Unemployment insurance 90 90 82 B
Utilities 24,000 22,000 21,894 106
Repair and maintenance 35,500 60,500 9,807 50,693
Operating costs 500 500 N7 183
Janitorial costs 2,000 2,000 1,557 443
Capital outlay - - 36,961 {36.961})
Total civic center 76,300 95,855 79.858 15,897
Parks
Salaries 200,337 200,337 172,392 27,945
Employee benefils 38,500 34,800 34,715 85
Repair and maintenance 58,600 61,600 59,702 1.898
Utilities 64,200 102,200 50,757 51,443
Insurance 1,170 as0 805 45
(hher operating expenses 24,075 26,275 21,83 4,444
Capital ouilay - - 77.446 (77,446)
Total parks 386,882 426,062 417,648 8,414
Total health, welfare, and
racreation 605,685 663.630 630,555 33,075
Economic development
State plan service 15,000 15,000 14,407 593
Professional fees 37.734 37,984 33,700 4,284
Tourism advertising - - 1,550 {1,550}
Travel 3,000 1,000 768 232
Maintenance 30,766 24,766 11,728 13,038
Miscellaneous 8,500 13,750 9,577 4,173
Capital outlay - 100,000 87.015 12,985
Total economic development 95,000 192,500 158.745 33.755
Debt service
Pringipal paymenis 131,761 131,762 81,763 49,999
Interest payments 54,956 54,000 54,895 5
Paying agent fees 1,000 __1.000 71 929
Total debt service 187,717 187,662 136.729 50,933
Total expenditures 6,266,362 6.064.147 5,805,384 258,763

Tha accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount {Negative)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (309,072) {125.433) 206,182 331,615
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in 950,088 1,057,706 1,081,073 23,367
Transfers out {700,000) {700,000} (856,000} (156,000)
Sale of general fixed assets 5,000 15,000 14,980 {20}
Total other financing sources {uses) 255,088 372,706 240,053 {132.653)
Net change in fund balance (53,984) 247,273 446,235 198,962
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,954,840 1,954,940 1.954,940 -
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 1,900,956 $ 2,202,213 S 2,401,175 3 198,962

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Budgetary Basis]
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actual
Revenues/ Varjance with
Less: Add: Expanditures Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Encumbrances Er brances {Budgetary Paositive
Qriginat Final (GAAP Basis) 71142013 64302014 Basis) {Negative]
Revenues
Intergavernmental revenugs
Local funds
Hendersan County
Whael tax % 85000 $ 78.600 13 78,622 3 - s - 3 78,632 g 22
Currenl year tax lavy 463 000 423000 423 551 - - 423,551 551
Prior year tax receigts 33.000 24 T80 24 843 . . 24,843 63
Mixed drink lax 1,200 593 594 - - 594 1
l.ocal sales tax 761,000 708 800 708851 - - 708,851 51
Interstale telecommunicalion taxes 500 500 502 - - 502 2
Bank extise tax 1,300 1.300 3204 - - 2204 1,904
Mamage licanses 500 393 393 - - 393 .
Other 8000 8.000 7.20% . - 7,302 691
State funds
Basic educalion 4,783 000 4783000 4 792.000 - . 4792,000 9,000
Early childhoed education 202114 202 114 202,114 - . 202114 -
Career ladder 35,000 35,000 32 844 - - 32,844 [2.158)
ACT reimbursement . . 723 - - ksl 723
Tech fund - 59,905 59,905 - - £9 905 -
Career ladder extended - 17620 17,820 - - 17,620 -
Coordinated School Health 92,000 92 000 92,000 . - 92 000 -
Internat Connectivity 3,500 3,500 284 - - 2843 859}
Student Management 2 600 2600 2620 - - 2620 20
Sale schools grant B 5 B0D 5800 - . 5800 .
Cther Stale education funds 48 600 49706 51,606 - - 51606 1,900
Olher Stale grants - 2,15 2775 - - 2775 -
Federal funds
Tile | grants 236994 260 598 256177 - . 256177 [4,421)
Other Federat through State - 234 377 172794 - B 172,754 (61,583;
Speacial educatian grants lo statg 186 487 190373 190 373 - - 180 373 -
Special educaticn preschool - idea 3673 4481 4481 - - 4.4M -
Englsh language acquisition grant 2125 2125 2125 - - 2125 -
IDEA inclusian grant 17.797 20,066 13578 . . 13578 (6.488)
Tule IlA - improving teach qualily 47 590 50,350 46 950 - - 46 950 {3 400)
First 10 iha top 408.126 439.195 302,470 - - 302.470 (136.725)
Total Intergovernmantal revenues 7.422.116 7.701 551 7.499.675 - - 7.499875 {201 876}
Other revenues
Interesl income 6,300 4 800 4 780 . - 4780 {20}
Contributions - 3000 3,000 - - 3.000 -
Receipls from indivedual schoels 1000 1000 1,516 - - 1,516 516
On-behall payments - 75000 56 575 . . 56 575 {18 425}
Misceltaneous revenues 2.500 1900 1972 - - 1.972 72
Total piher reverues 9.800 B5 700 67.843 = - 57.843 (17 857)
Total Revenues 7,432,916 1.787.251 7.567.518 - - 7.567.518 1219.733)

Tha sccompanying hotes anr an integral part of these financlal statements.



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Budgetary Basis) (continued)

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHODL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Expenditures
nstruct:on
Regular instruction program
Taachers
Career ladder program
Caroer [adder program - extended
Homebound teachers
fducational assistants
Bonus payments
Other salaries and wages
Certifigd substitute taachers
Non-certified substiute teachers
Social secunty
State retirement
Life insurance
Medical insurance
Denial insurance
Unemployment compansation
Local rotirement
Emgloyer mad:care
Qn-behalf payments
Mantenance and rapair - equipmant
Othar contracted services
Insiructioral supplies
Textbooks
Other supplias and malanats
Inditect costs
Other charges
Regular instruclion equipment

Total ragular instruclion program

Allesnative instruction
Contracts with other school systems

Total alternalive isiruction

Specal education
Taachers
Caraer laddar program
Educational assislants
Speech pathology
Certified substiule teachers
Non-cartified subsitute leachers
Secial secunly
State retirement
Med:cal insurance
Dental insurance
Unemploymenl compensalion
Lecal retirement
Employer medicare
Contracts with other schoois
Other conlracted services
Instructional supplies
Other supplies and matenals
Specsa! education equipmant

Tolal special educat-on

Student body education
Other salanes and wages
Social gacuntly
State retirement
Medical insurance
Denal insurance
Unemploymenl compensation
Emgloyer medicara
Traval
QOther contracted services
Other charges

Total sludent body education

Total instruction

Actual
Revenues/ Varlance with
Less: Add: Expenditures Final Budgel
Budgeted Amounts Actual Encumbrances Encumbrances {Budgstary Positive
Otiginal Final |{GAAP Basis) 71112013 6/30/2014 Basis) {Negative)
2,400,983 2349826 2291 357 - 2291357 58 469
19,000 19,000 15,333 - 15,333 1667
- 19,187 19.188 - - 19 188 {1}
- 1,608 1609 - 1,609 -
148 BB 134.33% 134,115 - . 134115 224
21,000 23768 33768 - 33,768 -
61,324 120,410 89 090 - . 2% 090 31,020
30,000 30.000 25815 - - 25815 4185
32,000 33,505 33505 . - 33,605 .
163,917 158,450 150 652 - . 150 652 7798
212,001 219,944 213648 - - 213648 6,296
8,120 6,120 5497 - - 5497 623
389,670 402,551 401912 - . 401 912 639
6,546 6,888 6876 - - 6876 12
4.000 730 7.281 - - 7.281 50
2515 2.519 1.938 . - 1938 581
37,656 40,136 5570 - - 35570 4,566
- 75,000 £6 5758 - . 56 575 18.425
3,000 3,000 . . . 3.000
35,275 35325 32 386 . - 32386 2939
59,200 71,239 £9.525 . 59 525 11714
40,500 40,500 37 665 - - 37.665 2835
9513 10,386 9229 - 9229 1157
2.273 2273 1.959 - . 1,959 314
6,000 6,000 4042 - 4042 1,958
182,000 242.044 229671 - - 229671 12,373
3.881,379 4071.050 3 698.206 - - 3.858.206 172.844
26.000 26.000 26.000 - 26.000
26.000 26.000 26.000 - 26.000
3705585 352,893 348 334 - - 248 334 4 5585
2,000 2.000 1,000 - - 1.000 1.000
98.863 54622 94618 84818 4
46,798 45,943 452375 - 45375 568
1,000 4160 4,160 - 4,160 .
1000 B.105 B,105 B.105 .
32253 28.382 28,065 - 28.065 N7
37,062 35 506 35,050 . 35.050 450
56.376 B8 493 88,4393 . B8 493 .
966 1,036 1,036 . - 1.036 .
[20 1.080 + 080 - - 1.080 -
1,068 450 450 - 450 -
7543 6,648 & 566 = - 6 566 a2
9,000 1,600 1,600 - - 1600 -
200 - - . . .
249 104 104 - - 104 -
100 58 24 - 24 34
100 . : ¢ . - 5
666.053 671.080 664.060 - - 664.060 7.020
74316 74216 72076 - 72076 2240
4607 4807 4,366 - - 4 366 29
6599 6,599 §400 - 6 400 199
10,976 11,689 11,688 - 1168% -
276 281 281 - - 281 -
100 114 114 = 114 B
1,078 1,078 1.021 - = 1021 s7
500 500 . - 500
12,000 12,000 11,000 E . 1t 000 1,000
10.000 11,269 10.900 - 10,500 369
120.452 122,453 117.847 - 117,847 4,606
4 683 884 4.850.583 4,706,113 - 4706113 184 470

The accompanying nolas ary an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPQOSE SCHOOL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENLIES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Budgatary Basis) { inued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2014

Actual
Ravenues/ Varlance with
Less: Add: Expendiures Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Encumbrances Encumbrances (Budgetary Positive
Qriginal Final (GAAF Basis) 7112013 6/30/2014 Basis} {Negative]
Expenditures(continued)
Support services
Altendance
Pastat charges 300 00 300 - - 300 -
Other contracted services 4800 14 438 13.975 - - 13978 463
Other supplies and malerials 500 480 . - B - 480
insarvice/staff development 2000 2000 1,838 - - 1838 162
Other charges 500 500 - - - - 500
Total attendance 8,100 17 718 16.113 - - 16,413 1805
Heatlth instruction program
Supervisoridsrector 46 B71 468711 45991 - - 45981 830
Madical personnel 60,6825 59825 53,653 - . 59 653 172
Other salaries 21.000 18727 15,727 - - 15727 -
Social secunty 7979 6.856 6,761 - - 6761 95
State ratirament 4162 4182 4083 - - 4083 il
Health insurance 13.666 16 646 16 646 - - 16 646 -
Dantal insurance 328 240 135 - . 135 105
Unemploymeni insurance 200 287 287 - - 287 .
Employer med:care 1866 1674 1,581 - . 1581 93
Postal charges 200 236 237 - - 237 {1
Other contracled services 12000 11,000 8276 - . 9276 1724
Other supplies and matenals 6978 16,720 13527 - E 13527 3183
Inservica/stafl davelopment 3.000 4.164 4.164 - - 41684 -
Total health instruction program 179.078 184.408 178.058 - - 178 058 £.350
Other studant support
Carger ladder program 6000 6000 6.000 . . 6000 .
Gudance persennel 111200 111,200 106 404 . . 106 404 4798
Social workers 532325 53325 51,040 - - 51.040 2285
Assassmen| personngt a8t 579 167 899 133,197 . - 133197 34702
Other sataries 1.150 1,100 275 275 825
Social secunty 16074 20,702 16.668 - - 16 668 4034
State retirement 23022 30116 26266 - - 26 366 3750
Medical insurance 32980 44177 40.398 . - 40 398 a7rg
Dental insurance 601 761 696 . - 696 &5
Unemployment compensation N 329 283 - - 283 46
Employer medicare 3760 4842 1899 - - 3899 943
Contracts with government agencias 60,000 H5 95% 859589 - - 85 959 -
Evaluaton and testing 12,000 10114 5275 - - 5275 4839
Oiher chargas 1.000 267 110 . - 110 157
Other equipment 3000 J.000 3.000 - - 3.000 -
Tatal cther student support 411 9562 539.791 479.570 - . 478.570 60 221
Regular instruclion program
SupervisorfDirector 144 950 143,750 142 470 . . 142 470 1,280
Career ladder program § 500 5500 4000 - - 4,000 1.500
Libranes 84 562 82 962 82,402 - - 82,402 560
Other satarias 221,775 160,845 175650 - - 175,650 15,195
Certified substitute laachers B35 1,636 1,220 - - 1.220 416
In-service trainng 25000 41800 38,350 - . 38350 3,450
Non-certiied substiute teachers 1,664 3,947 2720 - - 2720 1227
Social security 30026 278671 25 113 - - 25,103 2568
State retrement 23228 40118 A7 991 . - 37,90 2128

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thase financlal statechents.



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES (N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(Budgetary Basis) (continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actual
Revenues/ Varance with
Less: Add: Expenditures Final Budgot
Budgeted Amounts Actua! E brances E brances {Budgetary Posltive
Original Final (GAAP Basis) 7112013 _B130/2014 Basis) [Negative)
Expenditures{continued)
Support services{continued)
Regular instruction programicontinued
Medical insurance 35,689 42 247 42 247 - - 42,247 -
Dental insurance 552 553 553 - - 553 -
Unemployment compansation az7s 505 462 - - 462 43
Employer madicare 7.023 6672 6,083 - - 6.063 809
Consultants 3000 3.400 3,400 . - 3400 -
Duas and memberships 1,000 1.069 1,089 - - 1,069 -
Travel 500 534 534 . - 534 -
Other contraced sarvicas 34 242 30209 27,682 - . 27,862 2547
Library books and media 2000 $.000 9000 - - 5000 -
Instructional supplias 150 263 263 . 262 -
Cther supplies and materials 21,302 131684 12545 - - 12 545 1138
Insarvice/staff development 79,081 a7 840 8305 - - 53051 34 589
Other equipmant 7.000 7830 7.830 - - 7.830 -
Total regular instruction program 751,355 741 836 674,585 - - 574,585 67261
Special Education
Suparvisor/director 29303 30,407 30407 - - 30,407 -
Psychological personnel 29303 30238 30238 - = 30233 o
Social security 3203 1294 3,294 - - 3294 -
State retirement 5204 52385 5385 . - 5,385 -
Medical insurance 9 588 9898 9898 - - 9,898 -
Dental insurance 138 148 148 - - 148 -
Unemgloyment compensation 50 56 56 - - 56 -
Emptoyer medicars B4 770 770 - - 770 -
Othar contracted services 13.050 11,500 11,28% - - 11.28% 211
Otnar supphias and matenals 2.050 700 483 e - 483 217
inservice/stalf developmenl 50 ! ] - . 38 -
Other equ:ipmant 100 100 = - - - 100
Total spec:al education 92.879 92.534 92 006 - - 92.006 £28
Tolal support sarvices 1.443,372 1,576,287 1.440.332 = - 1.440.232 135955
General administration
Board of education
Medical insurance - 11.461 11.461 - - 11,461 -
Audi services 25000 25,000 25000 - . 25,000 -
Dues and subscriphons 9000 9,000 7 556 . - 7.556 1444
Legal servicas 6000 6,700 6700 - - 6.700 -
Printing. stationery, el 3800 1600 52 - - 52 3548
Traval 1000 1,000 . . - - 1000
Other contracled services 7000 7.000 4 506 . - 4,508 2494
Other supplies and matenals 100 126 126 - - 128 -
Liability insurance 12,102 12,102 12,1M E - 12,101 1
Suraty bonds 510 510 510 - - 510 -
Trustee's commission 1,000 19 000 18 471 E - 18,471 529
Workmans comgensalicn 16612 16.936 16,936 = - 16,936 -
Insarvice/staff development 4.000 2951 1.422 e - 1,422 1529
Refunds to apphcants £00 500 174 - - 174 26
Qther charges 9.000 9.000 7.203 = - 7.203 1.797
Total board of education 113.424 124.886 112,218 = - 112,218 12.668
Otfice of egducation
Counly officials 99 500 99 500 95 482 - - 95,482 4018
Carger ladder program 1.000 1 000 1000 : - 1,000 .
Socal secunty 62 6223 5710 - - 5710 513
Meadical insurance B.384 B384 8043 - - 8.043 341
Deantal nsurance 138 146 146 - - 146 -
Unemployment compensation 50 75 59 - - 59 16
Employer madicare 1,457 1457 1335 . - 1,335 122
Communication 12,000 14,500 14,404 - - 14,404 96
Duas and memberships 1000 1,000 804 - - 204 9%
Postage 1,500 1.000 883 - . 883 ny
Travel 2,000 1.049 506 - - 506 543
Other contractad services 2,000 - . . - - -
Office supplies 3000 3.000 2636 ] - 2638 364
Inservica/statl dovelopment 3000 5125 3.866 - . 3866 1,259
Other charges 6000 6,801 6492 - - 6492 309
Admimistrative equpment 2.000 = O = - - -
Tolal office of education 148.260 149.260 141.466 - - 141.466 7.794

Tha accornpanying notes are a0 integral part of thesa financlal statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANG CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE . BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Budgetary Basis) {continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2014

Actual
Revenues/ Varlance with
Less: Add: Expenditures Final Budget
Budgestad Amounts Actual Ei brances E brances {Budgetary Paslti
Qriginal Final {CAAP Basis) 712013 8/30/2014 Basis}) (Negative)
Expenditures{continued)
General administration(centinued)
Ofiice of pnnc:pal
Pancipals 212034 208,824 204 647 - - 204 647 3487
Career ladder program 3.00Q 3000 3,000 - - 3,000 -+
Accountanis and bockkeepers 44 563 44 563 44 561 - . 44 561 2
Assistanl poncipal 122,446 12130 118,332 - - 118332 2999
Cletical persannel 37,305 37,408 37,408 - E 37,408 -
Secial secunly 26,082 24 362 23.843 - . 23,843 518
State retirement 0,057 20 951 28 947 . . 28,947 1004
Medical insurance 33876 43 994 43 834 - . 43,994 .
Dental insurance 790 B15 815 - . 815 E
Unemployment compensaticn 450 520 £15 . E 515 &
Local relirement 1.937 2.205 2205 . . 2205 -
Employer medicara 6095 6.085 5576 - - 5576 519
Dues and memberships 2000 2000 + 500 - = 1.500 500
Postage 1500 1,500 1600 E . 1.500 .
Travel 500 g2 Q2 * . 82
Other contracled services 1200 1735 1735 . . 1738
Office supplies 1.500 1.500 1500 - - 1 500 -
inservice/stall development 3000 3.500 3218 = - 3218 284
Otner charges 2,000 A575 3291 - - 3291 284
Indirect costs 11318 11318 5,803 . - 5803 5515
Admiristrative equipmant 1.000 3,310 3.307 - - 3307 3
Tolal office of pnnaipal 543633 551.408 535,787 . . 535.787 15621
Fiscal services
Accountants and bockkeepers 95319 95 a3 94 170 a4 170 1,713
Purchasing persannel 43511 43512 43 512 B . 43,542 .
Clencal personngl 22 446 22 436 22 448 . E 22448 .
Other salaries and wages 1.000 - . . : - -
Social secunly 10 061 8681 8592 v - 8 532 7]
Medical insurance 10 454 21723 21723 - - 21723 =
Dental insurance 278 414 414 . - 414 -
Unempioyment compensation 300 300 292 - . 292 B
Local reiremmant 4 000 4,000 3585 - - 3585 415
Emplayer medicare 2353 2353 2120 . : 2,120 233
Dues and memberships 300 A0 - - - - 300
Olher contracied services 8800 8 800 61779 - - ar179 21
Data processing supplies 1000 728 3an . . 320 408
Otfice supples 2000 700 64T . . 847 53
Inservica/sialf development 3.000 3003 2118 - - 2718 282
Administration equipment 3000 - = = . - -
Total fiscal services 205.820 210 820 207.318 - - 207.318 3502
Plant operalions
Jantonal services 24812 24813 317 145 - - 217,145 7,668
Disposal fees 4,000 4,000 3204 - - 204 9%
Permits 500 500 165 - - 165 335
Ciher conlracted services 25 000 21,000 20852 . . 20,852 148
Electnaty 305,000 305 849 305609 - - 305,609 -
Natural gas 33 000 41,290 41290 - - 41,290 -
Walter 30 000 25 600 25523 . - 25,523 7
Qther suppiies and matenats 1.000 500 . - . - 500
Boilar insurance 1.289 1,289 1289 . . 1.2689 -
Bukiing and contents insurance 28 656 28 656 28558 E 28658 -
Vehicta and equipment 8.446 B.446 8448 - - 8.445 -
Total plant pperations 761703 781 703 752178 - = 752.17¢ 9.524

The sceompanying noles are an integral part of these hinancial statements.



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET ANG ACTUAL (Budgetary Basis) [continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 10, 2014
Actual
Revenues/ Varlance with
Less: Add: Expenditures Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual E brances E brances  {Budgetary Positive
Original Final {GAAP Basis) F11:2013 6/30/2014 Basis) !Negllivu]
Expendiures{continued)
General admimistration{continued)
Plant mantenance
Par tme personneal 10,000 10,000 8277 - - aarn 1723
Sowial secunty 620 620 513 - - 513 107
Unemploy p 50 50 27 - . 27 23
Employer medicane 145 145 120 . - 120 25
Contracts with govemment agences 110,000 110 000 95,191 - - 99 191 10809
Mainienance and repair « buildings 65,000 71987 71,967 {600} . 71,3687 600
Maintenance and repair - equipment 25.000 14,686 11,733 - - 11,733 2953
Maintenance and repair - other egquipmant 500 500 - - - . 500
Other contracted services 95,000 95 000 93 454 - - 93454 1 546
Gasohne 3,000 3.000 2426 e - 2426 574
Vehicle parts 1,000 1000 518 - . 518 482
Other supphes and matenats 25,000 34.882 34,882 . . 34 882 .
Inservice/s1at! development 1,000 1,165 1,185 - - 1,165 .
Olher charges 500 500 189 - - 185 I
Building improvements - . B84g - - 8849 (8 849)
Matntenance equipment 8.000 6.000 - - - . 8.000
Tolal plant mantenance 342.815 3498.515 3331 (E600) - 33271 16.804
Cantral and ather
Supervisoridirector 4230 43 10 42,356 - - 42 356 954
Dala processing personnel 45,150 69954 69,356 . - 69356 598
Social secunly 5484 6884 6.520 - - 6520 364
Medical insurance 9 147 18 419 18419 - . 18419 .
Dental insurance 415 415 406 . - 406 9
Unemploymant compensation 150 250 250 - 250
Local ratirernent 2200 2.246 2246 - 2248 .
Employer medicare 1,283 1,610 1,525 . . 1525 B5
Dues ang membarships 200 200 30 - 30 170
M, e and repaif - equipment 17 400 4692 1.690 - - 1.680 1002
Travel 1000 1000 407 - - 4067 593
Other contracied services 94 00D 94 000 86910 . - 88 910 7090
Other supplas and malanats 18.000 18,000 12,705 - 12705 £295
inservice/statf davelopment 4,000 4000 2128 - 2128 1872
Qther chatges 2.000 2,000 1,528 - - t528 472
Data processing equipment 8.000 8,568 8668 . . B 668 .
Other equipment 22,000 22.000 21.875 - - 21.875 125
Totat central and other 273.339 287.648 277.019 o - 277.019 20 629
Total general adminisiration 2.389.994 2.445.240 2.359.208 (600 - 2,358.698 88 542
Early childhood education
Teachers 87,651 87,789 B7,769 . - B7,769 .
Educational assistants 42,400 44,318 44 316 - - 44 116 .
Other salanes and wages 5827 583 883 - - 582 -
Certfied subshtute teachers 3200 2840 2840 - - 2840 -
Nen-certified substiute leachers 1,200 1,120 1130 - - 1130 -
Social secunty 8337 7,765 7.785 - - 7185 -
State retvement 7,782 7,518 7.518 - - 7.518 -
Madical insurance 15394 15,426 15428 - - 15428
Dental insurance 276 276 276 - . 276
Unempioyment compansation 50 342 2 - - 2 -
Local retrement 1,035 1,092 1,082 . - 1082 -
Employer medicare 2034 1.841 1,841 - - 1841 .
Travel 100 - - . - . -
Instructional supples 3232 5778 5,778 - - 5778 -
Othar supplies and matenals 2,000 2702 2,702 . - 2702 -
Indwgct casts 9,014 8,804 8 804 - - B ag4 -
Inservicefstaff development 3,500 2,204 2204 . - 2204
Other charges 781 1,093 1,093 - . 1.092 -
Regular instruction equipment 8.000 10.634 10.834 - - 10.634 =
Total early chuldhood educaton 202.114 202.115 202,115 - - 202 115 -

The accompanyIng netes are an Integral part of these financtal statements
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES (N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Budgetary Basis) | inued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actual
Revenues! Variance with
Less: Add: Expandituras Flnal Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual E b E b (Budgetary Posilive
Original Final [GARAP Basis) Ti/2013 813012013 Basis) {Negativa}
Expenditures|continued)
Debt service
Pnncipal payments 110,232 110,232 110.232 - - 110.232 .
interest payments 13.548 13548 13.548 - - 13.548 -
Total debt servica 123.780 123.780 123.780 - - 123,780
Capital outlay
Building improvements 52 500 116,443 77.830 (50.767) 30.341% §7.374 £9.069
Tolal capital outlay 52,500 116.441 77,830 150,797} 30,341 §7.374 59.069
Tetal Expenditures 8.905.644 3354448 8.909.468 {51,397} 30.341 0.680.412 465.036
£ {deflclency) of re ovor [under} axpenditures (1.472.728) (1.567.187) {1.341.950) 51.397 (30,341} {1.320 894} 246.303
Other financing sources and [uses)
Transiers in 1.072.728 1.072.728 1.063.000 - - 1.063.000 (9.728)
Total other financing sources and {uses) 1.072.728 1,072,728 1,063,000 - - 1.063.000 {9.728)
Net change in fund balance {400 000} {494 469) (278.950) 51,337 {30,241} {257 894} 236 575
Fund balance - beginning of year 1639964 1.639.964 1,691,361 {51.397} - 1639964 -
Fund balance - end of yaar $ 1239964 S 1,145495 $ 1.412.411 s - § {30.34%) § 1.382.070 1 236578

Tha sccompanying notas ane an integral par al thase finsnclal stalements.



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis - resiricted

Invesiments

Investments - restricted

Accounis receivable, net of allowance

Note receivable

Currenl pertion of advance lo other funds

Grant receivables

(ither receivables

Due from other funds

Inventory

Natural gas storage

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Buildings
Equipment
General plant
Distribution plamt
Construction in progress

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Less accumulated depreciation

NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OTHER ASSETS

Note receivable - TVA Home Insulation Program

Noncurrent portion of notes receivable
Deposits
Olher deferred costs

Bond issue costs, net of accumutated amortizalion

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued inlerest
Bond premium
Compensated absences
Customer deposils
Due to olher funds
Curren| portion of lang-term debt

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences
Bonds and notes payable
Pansion labitlity
Other post employment benelits

Advances from Home {nstallation Frogram

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Nel investmant in capital assels
Reslricted lor debl service
Unrestricted net position

TOTAL NET POSITION

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2014

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

GAS WATER SYSTEMS ELECTRIC
FUND FUND DEPARTMENT TOTALS
$ 4924126 S 1084415  § B.785815 14,794,356
5 : 2,187,659 2,187 659
. 58,445 5 58,445
. 5 100,000 100,000
782,748 5 3,044,021 3,828,769
50,597 : : 50,597
151 117,871 - 118,022
135,871 114,305 163,515 413681
23,059 520,042 - 543 101
225,730 188,752 256,368 671,350
618 657 - - 618 657
31,518 74.016 22.452 127.986
8,792,457 2,157,646 14,560,330 23,510,633
118,227 76,153 : 192 380
527,639 411,584 . 930,423
1,554,257 1,940,935 5 3,495 192
5 : 5,262,790 5,262.750
14,386,993 36,204 626 50,919,508 101,511,128
45.757 269,272 8,236,826 1,554,855
16,634,072 38,902,570 64,419,125 119,955 768
{8,852.04D) {17.143,829) {22,839,409) (48,835.278)
7.782,033 21.756.741 41,579,718 71,120,490
. 296,870 296 870
. 65 . 85
: . 106 656 106 656
. . 165,724 165.724
0 85 569,250 569,315
14.574.490 23,916,652 56,709,206 95,200,438
264,208 261,036 3.431,203 3,056,537
57,746 68,560 216,157 342,462
20,126 88935 137,723 255 844
: . 598 646 508 646
384,010 160783 544,650 1,080,443
569,032 22327 . 501,350
361,077 958215 525,000 1,844,292
1.665.289 1,559,916 5,453,379 8.678.584
201,045 401,885 531,510 1,624,240
2,844,980 10,534,407 14,845,000 28,224,387
8 : 529,255 520,255
762,889 762,889
; i 207,307 207,307
3.136.025 10,936,092 17,365,561 31,438,078
4.801.314 12,496,008 22,819,340 40,116,662
4,575,976 10,266,119 27.101.779 41,943,074
: . 1,257 873 1,257,873
5,197.200 1,154,525 5,530,304 11,862,029
$ 9773176 § 11420644  § 33.889.956 55,083,776

The accompanying notes are an integral parn of these financlal siatements,
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

GAS WATER SYSTEMS ELECTRIC
FUND FUND DEPARTMENT TOTALS
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 5 7,564,309 ] 5,829,804 $ 48,716,060 $ 60,110,173
Miscellaneous 6812 9.269 790,986 807,067
TOTAL OPERATING REVENLIES 7.571.121 5,839,073 47,507,046 60,917,240
OPERATING EXPENSES
Natura! gas purchases 4,926,646 - - 4,926,646
Water purchases - 105,721 - 105,721
Purchased for resale - - 36,164,104 36,164,104
Personng| expenses 1,257,219 2,176,166 - 3,433,385
Supplies - 424,924 . 424,924
Lhilities 23,497 431,289 B 454,786
Repairs and maintenance 137,796 546,834 1476,714 2,161,344
Professional fees 12,128 31,414 - 43,543
Operaling expenses 52,156 43,543 4,924 811 5,020,610
Rent 46,800 24,620 - 71,420
Office expense 140,591 75,243 - 215,834
Transportation expense 45512 78,071 - 127,583
Insurance 28,737 89,152 - 117,899
Taxes and tax equivalents - - 258,635 258,635
Memberships and subscriptions - 55,786 - 55,786
Miscellaneous - 1.877 - 1,877
Depreciation and amortization 473,037 896,057 1,743,239 3,112,333
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7.148,120 4,980,707 44,567,603 56,696,430
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 423,001 858,366 2,939,443 4,220,810
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 18,541 1,672 76,842 97,105
Sale of materials - 2,936 - 2,936
Miscellaneous revenue - - 7,871 7,571
Amortization of bond issue costs 504 3,797 (8,309) {4,008)
Misceilaneous expense - - (30,747) (30,747)
TEAC setilement 102,564 - - 102 564
Gain (loss) on sale of asset 90 (342) . {252)
[nsurance reimbursements 9,270 - . 9270
Interest expense {106,367) (350,558} (576.684) (1,033,609)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
{EXPENSES) 24,652 (342,495) (531,327) {849.170)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 447,653 515,871 2,408,116 3.371.640
Transfers to other funds (151,162) {103,936) (743,851) (998,949)
Transfers from other funds - 4,142 - 4,142
Capitat contributions (1,175) 113,423 - 112,248
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 295,316 529,500 1,664,265 2,489,081
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR, as originally stated 9,477,860 11,001,828 32,225,691 52 705,379
Prior period adjustment - {110,684) - {110,684}
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,477,860 10,821,144 32,225 691 52,594,695
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 3 8,773,176 $ 11,420,644 S 33,888,956 % 55,083,776

‘The accompanying noles are an Integral part of thesa financial statements.




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash received from ciher funds for services
Qther operating cash receipts
Cash payments to city - tax equivalents
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments lo employess lor services
Other operating cash payments
Customer deposits recaived
Customer daposits refunded
Cash payments lo other funds for services
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TEAC settiement
Amounls paid to other funds
Sale of matenals
Advances from Home Insulation Proaram
NET CASH PRCVIDED BY (USED FOR} NON-CAPITAL
FIRANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitron and construction of fixed assets
Plant remeval cost
Materials salvaged from retiremants
Gain on sale of capilal assets
Grant praceeds
Insurance recoveries
Payments recaived on advances o other funds
Paymenis received on notes receivable
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest paid on leng-term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY [USED FOR) CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purthase of investments
Procesads irom sale of invesiments
HNotes raceivable - TVA Home insutatian Program
Interast on cash and invesiments
Miscellaneous revenues
Miscallaneous expensas
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income {loas) from operating aclivities
Adjustments Lo recencile income from operatians to net cash
Depreciation and amortization
Amounts paid to Cily - tax equivalents
Changes in Assats and Liabilities
{Increass] dacraase in accounts recewable
{Increasa} decreasa in olher receivables
{increase) decrease in notes receivable
{increase} decreasa in inventory
{Increase) decrease in prepavd assels
{Increase} decrease in due from pthar funds
(Increase} decrease in prepaid expensas
{Increase} decrease in nalural gas slorage
Increase (decrease] in accounts payabla
Increase (decreasa) in due 1o other funds
Increase {decrease) in pansion hability
Increase (decrease) n OPEB
Ir { ) in customer o 1t
Iincrease idecreasa) in compensaled absences
increase |decrease) n accrued habilites
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTMVITIES
OPEB

Capslal assels lransfermed lo other fund
Book value of assets transferred to other fund
Amouni shown as operating transfer to viher furid

Capnal assel transferred from athar fund a1 el boeok valug
(hspositon of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assel

Book value of capilal assets disposed
Gain on disposal of capilal assets

The are an il thesa Pmancial aiatementa.

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2034

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

AS WATER SYSTEMS  ELECTRIC
FUND FUND DEPARTMENT TOTALS
5 7575069 § §803215  § 47435918 & 60814300
. 3076 : 3076
sa12 9.269 : 16.081
. . (43,851 {743,851}
{5.884 076} {1.883.760) {41,763 546) (49,331,282}
{1,204,552) {2.135.750) (1.503.781) (4844 093
(135‘871) - - {135.871}
- - 226,028 226 028
- - {211,098) {211,096]
{4 187) {2.590) - 16, n?t
551,295 1,793,460 3 439 660 5786 415
102.564 ; . 102,584
(147,020} (103.936) - (250,956
; 2936 ; 2938
; . 29217 20217
{44.456) (101.000) 29217 (116.239)
(63 680) (638, 556) (4,487 985) (5.188.221)
. 3 {171.043) (171,049}
- - 89033 89,033
. %7 2 367
34626 130.710 : 185,336
9.270 . . 9270
49,908 . . 43,998
65,000 . . 85,000
(381,029} (838,982) (510.000) {1,799 991)
|1DB 749! {358,152} {580 693} {1,045794
(364.564) {1.800.553) {5.650.804) {7.826.051)
- 220,429 {100,000} 120,429
. X 100,000 100,000
. . (29,368) {20.368)
18,591 1672 76,842 7 108
. . 7571 7,571
5 - {30.747) {30 747}
18851 722101 24708 264990
162 866 113068 (2.167.719) {1690.685)
A4.761.260 970 447 13,141,193 18.872.900
s 4924126 S 1084415 S 10973474 S 16.982.015
s a23em s 858366 S 2939443 5 4220810
473037 896,057 1743239 3142333
] 1743 851} {743851)
1255} ” 71,130) (71.385)
1135871 4882 3 {130,989}
14538 (794) 10,857 24,808
. . 869 B89
27 (2.590) ; (2563
(22.543) (50.508) . {73.051)
{281.131) - . (261,131)
2026 37.058 845 667) {505582)
(4,214} 3076 - {1,138)
; . {79.207) {79.207)
. . $70 185 170,165
11,115 {3.800) 14 932 22247
33.265 40,418 : 71881
19 402 11,268 - 30 688
T 53285 S 1793460 § 3430660 § 5786415
& - 1) - 5 170,166 1 170 152-
s (7o s . s . 5 (107.929)
103,786 - - 103,786
s {4,142) S - 5 - s {4 14_2L
s . s 2142 8 . s 4142
-] {132 192} % (313,821) § . -] (448,013}
1200 36t . 1567
131,082 13112 - 444 154
5 %0 X B4 S : g (252,
k1



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

School Activity Pension Trust Funds
Agency Municipal Electric
ASSETS Fund Employees Employees
Cash and cash equivalents $ 63,002 $ - 3 -
Other receivables 27 - -
Investments:
Mutual funds (market value) - 9,358,784 6,900,138
Annuities (market value) - 236,851 -
TOTAL ASSETS 63,929 9,595,635 6,900,138
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities 63,929 - -
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits - 9,595,635 6,900,138
TOTAL NET POSITION 5 - $ 9,595,635 $ 6,900,138

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Additions
Contributions and other additions
Investment income
Net investment gain/(loss)

Total Additions

Deductions
Fees
Benefits
Total Deductions
Net increase in net position

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pension Trust Funds

Municipal Electric

Employees Employees Total
$ 777943 § B11,995 1,589,938
5,233 - 5233
1,301,134 1,088,227 2,389,361
2,084,310 1,900,222 3,984,532
33,416 505 33,921
206,863 1,402,188 1,609,051
240,279 1,402,693 1,642,972
1,844 031 497 529 2,341,560
7,751,604 6,402,609 14,154,213
$9,595635 § 6900138 § 16495773




CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and reporting
framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

1. A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following:
Primary Government: City of Lexington
Blended Component Units: None

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14,
“The Financial Reporling Entity,” and includes all component units of which the City appointed a voting
majority of the units’ board; the City is either able to impose its will on the unit or a financial benefit or burden
relationship exists.

Biended Component Units

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described above
and whose governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City Board or the component unit
provides services entirely to the City. These component units’ funds are blended into those of the City's by
appropriate activity type to compose the primary government presentation. Currently, the City has no blended
component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above but do not meet the crileria for blending. Currently, the City has no discretely presented
component units.

1. B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government
as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues inciude 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricled to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments for in lieu of taxes where the amounts are
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

government’s utility functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporling enlity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be
separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered maijor if it is the primary
operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expendiluresfexpenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or
type; and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund

or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmenial and
enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund. it is used
to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

Capital Praject Fund

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction of
specific capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes anly one Capital Project Fund and it is used to
account for the acquisition of capital assets with transfers made from the General Fund.

Debt Service

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of interest and
principal on the general long-term debt of the city other than debt service payments made by enterprise funds.
This fund is used to pay the debt of the post office building. The building is rented to the U.S. Postal Service.
Rental payments are used for the payment of principal and interest.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like aclivities provided to the general public. These
activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net
income measurement similar to the private sector.

Fiduciary Funds (Not included in government-wide statements)

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial capacity. The reporting entity includes
one agency fund. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities) they do not involve
the measurement of resulls of operations. The agency fund is as follows:

Fund Brief Description
School Agency Fund Accounts for student activity funds that record transactions related to
resources held in fiduciary capacity for the general school
population, or in some cases, for a specific segment of the school
population.
Pension Trust Funds
Pension trust funds account for pension contributions, benefits, and distributions. The City has the following
two funds: one for the Electric Depariment and anocther for the governmental departments and the remaining
utility departments.

Major and Nonmajor Funds

The funds are further classified as major or nonmajor as follows:

Fund Brief Description
Major:
General See above for description.

Special Revenue Fund:

General Purpose School Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the City’'s schoal.

Proprietary Fund:

Natural Gas Fund Accounts for activities of the government's natural gas distribution
operations.

Water Systems Fund Accounts for operations of the sewage facilities and the distribution
of water.

Electric Department Accounts for activilies of the government’s electric distribution
operations.



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Nonmajor

Special Revenue Funds:

State Street Aid Accounts for the state gas tax revenue and the expenditures legally
restricted to street maintenance.

School Tax Fund Accounts for revenues, which are primarily a portion of the State-
shared sales tax revenues and transfers from the General Fund, and
expenditures, which are primarily capital in nature.

School Food Service Accounts for the school cafeteria revenues and the expenditures.

Solid Waste Collection Accounts for the solid waste collection revenue and expenditures
related to disposal services.

Dare Fund Accounts for project revenues and expenditures related to drug
awareness programs.

Police Drug Fund Accounts for revenues and expenditures on drug fines and
enforcement costs.

Debt Service Fund See above for description.

Capital Projects Fund See above for description.

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as
current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates timing transactions
or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon thereafter to pay liabllities of the current period. For this
purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term
debt and acquisitions under capital lease are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal

period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met;
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including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability
period for this revenue source (within 60 days of yearend). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as
revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have
been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue
source (within 60 days of yearend). All other revenue items are considered fo be measurable and
available only when the cash is received by the government.

The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting.

The City does not allocate indirect costs.

1.D. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America for ali governmental funds.

The City adopts its budget in accordance with the State’s legal requirement which is the level of
classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

a. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the General and Special Revenue Funds. These budgets are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

b. Unused appropriations for each of the annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of
the year.

c. Revisions to the budget may be made throughout the year in accordance with
governing statutes and consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

1.E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSTION/FUND BALANCE

Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, “cash and cash equivalents” includes all demand, savings
accounts, and certificates of deposits of the City. For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash
Flows, “cash and cash equivalents” include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or

short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or Jess.

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market price. Additional cash and
investment disclosures are presented in Notes 2.B. and 3.A.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as “due
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to and from other funds.” Short-term interfund loans are reported as “interfund receivables and payables.”
Long-term interfund loans {noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund
receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net
Position. See Note 3.H. for details of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet
received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic
aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property
taxes, sales taxes, and grants. Business-type activities report utilities as their major receivables.

inventories and Prepaid Expense

Inventories consist primarily of supplies, valued at cost, which approximates market. Cost is determined
using current costs. All City inventories are maintained on a consumption basis of accounting where items
are purchased for inventory and charged to the budgetary accounts as the items are consumed. Prepaid
expenses are also maintained on the consumptive basis of accounting.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of bond issues, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use
is fimited by applicable bond covenants.

Bond Discounts / Issuance Costs

In the governmental funds bond discounts are treated as period costs in the year of issue. In the proprietary
funds, bond discounts are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method if
it does not differ materially from the interest method.

Bond issuance costs are treated as expenses in the year incurred in both governmental and proprietary funds
except for Lexington Electric System. Lexington Eleciric System capilalizes bond issue costs and amortizes
these cosls over the life of the bond issue.

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assels
are used in governmental fund operatiens or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the
government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide Stalements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital assets. All capital
asseis are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated
capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated historical
cost was used to value some of the assets acquired prior to June 30, 2003.

Prior to July 1, 2002, governmental funds' infrastructure assets were not capitalized. Infrastructure assets
include roads, bridges, underground pipe {other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc.
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The capitalization policy is as listed below:
1. Real property — Land
a. Land — non depreciable $1
b. Land Improvements $5,000
2. Real property — Buildings $10,000
3. Motor Vehicles
a. Cars/Light Trucks/Jeeps $10,000
b. Trucks/Heavy $25,000
c. Buses $10,000
d. Vans $10,000
4. Equipment $30,000
5. Personal Property $5,000

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided
over the assets’ estimated usefu! lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of eslimated
useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Years
Buildings 10-50
Equipment 5-17
Vehicles 5-7
Plant 15-50

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund
operations are accounted for the same as in the gavernment-wide statements.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government does not have any items that qualify for this
reporting category as of June 30, 2014.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one item, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category, Accordingly, the item,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the governmental
funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source: property taxes.
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Long-term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund

operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial stalements.

All long-term debt lo be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes payable, capital lease payables,
accrued compensated absences, and post-closure landfill costs.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The debt
proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principle and interest reported as
expenditures. The accounting for proprietary funds is the same in the fund statements as it is in the
government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences

The City's policies regarding vacation and personal leave time permit employees to accumulate earned but
unused vacation and personal leave. The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term
debt in the government-wide statements. The current porlion of this debt is estimated based on historical
trends. In the fund financial staterments, governmental funds report only the compensated absence liability

payable from expendable available financial resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is
incurred.

Eleclric System
It is the System's policy o permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. All vacation pay has been accrued and is reflected as a current liability on the financial statements.

All sick leave has been accrued and is reflected as both a current and non-current liability on the financial
statements.

School System

The System's policy is to pay $10 for every unused day of sick leave accumulated at retirement. The
System’s financial statements do not include a liability for compensated absences as the amount is not
malerial.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond
or grant proceeds) and unresiricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which resources are considered applied. It is the

government's policy to considered restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net
position is applied.

Net position is displayed in three components:
a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricled capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, noles,

or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those
assets.
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b. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments;
or {2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net
investment in capital assets.”

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the

use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund
balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision making authority. The Board of
Aldermen is the government’s highest level of decision-making authority for the government that can, be
adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific
purposes but do not meet the crileria to be classified as committed. The governing board has by resolution
authorized the finance director to assign fund balance. The council may also assign fund balance as it does
when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the
subsequemnt year's budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other
words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely,
as discussed above, an additional aclion is essential {o either remove or revise a commitment.

Nonspendable fund balance is associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable,
and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, commitied or assigned).

Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

The City has not yet adopted an order of fund balance spending policy. I considers that committed amounts
would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are

incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricled fund balance classifications could be
used.

1.F. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES

Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes,
and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Sales Tax

The City presently levies a nine and three-quarters percent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The
sales tax is collected by the Tennessee Department of Revenue and remitted to the City in the month
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following receipt by the Department of Revenue. The Department of Revenue receives the sales tax
approximately one month after collection by vendors. The sales tax is recorded in the General Fund and the
School Tax Fund. Sales tax remitied to the City in July has been accrued and are included under the caption
“Due from other governments.”

Property Tax

Property taxes are levied annually on the first of January. The taxes are due and payable from the following
October through February in the year succeeding the tax levy. An unperfected lien attaches by statute to
property on March 1 for unpaid taxes from the prior year's levy. Taxes uncollected for one year past the due
date are submitted to the Chancery Court for collection. Tax liens become perfected at the time the court

enters judgment. In the fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as revenue in the period
levied to the extent they are collected within 60 days of year-end.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to
capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. All revenues that are not generated
from the daily operations are defined as non-operating.

Expenditures/ Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental funds — by Character: Current {further classified by function)
Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

Interfund Transfers

Permanent, reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as interfund
transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual

governmental funds have been eliminated.
NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABLITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various federal, state,
and local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City's compliance with significant laws and
regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resources faollows.

2.A. FUND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

Fund Required By
Police Drug Fund State Law
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2.B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In accordance with state law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions must be
secured with acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par. Acceptable collateral includes certain
U.S. Government or Government Agency securities, certain State of Tennessee or political subdivision debt
obligations, or surety bonds. As required by 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging
collateral to the City must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan
committee.

The City's investment policies are governed by State statute. Permissible investments include direct
obligations of the U.S. Government and agency securities, certificates of deposit, and savings accounts.
Collateral is required for demand deposits, certificates of deposits, and repurchase agreements at 105% of all
amounts not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its subdivisions. The City
has no policy that further limits allowable investments.

2.C. REVENUE RESTRICTIONS

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements. The
primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use

Sales Tax Portion to fund city school program
Gasoline Excise Tax Street purposes

Grants Grant program expenditures

2.D. FUND EQUITY RESTRICTIONS
Deficit Prohibition

Tennessee Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in any individual fund. The City had no
deficit fund batances at June 30, 2014.

2.E. BUDGET

Lexington City Schools
The Systern's is required by state law to prepare an annual budget. The budget is subject to approval by the
Lexington City Council and the System cannot exceed the total budgeted expenditures.

The System uses a budgetary basis of accounting. It is consistent with GAAP, except that instances in which
encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures. The difference between the budgetary basis and the
GAAP basis is presented on the face of each budgetary schedule.

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

3.A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The City's policies regarding deposits of cash are discussed in Note 1.D. The City maintains checking

accounts with local banks. Also, some funds are held as certificates of deposit at local banks. Deposiis are
carried at cost plus accrued interest. The carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance
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sheet as “Cash and cash equivalenis” and “investments”. Investments consist of certificates of deposils at
local banks whose original maturity exceeds three months.

The City's policies regarding deposits of cash are discussed in Note 2B.

General Government

As of June 30, 2014, the City's bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk due to being entirely
covered by depository insurance (a combination of federal depository insurance with the excess covered by
the State's Bank Collateral Pool).

Gas System
As of June 30, 2014, the System's deposits were not exposed to custodial credit risk due to being entirely

covered by depository insurance (a combination of federal depository insurance with the excess covered by
the State's Bank Collateral Poal).

Water Systems

As of June 30, 2014, the System's bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk due to being
entirely covered by depository insurance (a combination of federal depository insurance with the excess
covered by the State's Bank Collateral Pool).

Electric System
As of June 30, 2014, the System's bank deposits were fully collateralized or insured

School System
Cash in bank balance represents funds on deposit in one local depository. These funds were entirely insured
by FDIC or through the Bank Collateral Pool with the State of Tennessee.

3.B. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consists of utilities receivable. Accounts receivable of the
governmental activities consists of amounts due from the various local sources. Receivables detail at June
30, 2014, is as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Accounts receivable 3 13,429 5 4,100,978 ] 4,114,407
Allowance for doubtful accounts {11,378) (274,209) (285,587)
Net accounts receivable 5 2,051 S 3,826,769 3 3,828,820

3.C. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capita! asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:



JUNE 30, 2014
Balance Additions/ Retirements/ Balance
7113 Adjustments Adjustments 6/30/114
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 2142838 % - $ - $ 2,142,838
Construction in Progress 146,532 23.633 146,532 23,633
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 2,289,370 23,633 146,532 2,166,471
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 27,504,685 5,416 - 27,510,101
Equipment 6,793,422 251,562 155,585 6,889,399
Equipment under capital lease S - - -
Infrastructure 16,006,825 109,615 - 16,206,440
Improvements 6,459,487 386,521 - 6,846,008
Total Capital assets being depreciated 56,854,419 753,114 155,585 57,451,948
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 10,245,571 541,648 - 10,767,219
Equipment 5,462,203 415,668 153,345 5,724, 526
Infrastructure 11,604,990 38,445 - 11,643,435
Improvements 3.012,488 352,576 - 3,365,064
Total accumulated depreciation 30,325,252 1,348,337 153,345 31,520,244
Total capilal assets, being depreciated, net 26,529,167 25,931,704
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 28,818,537 $ 28,098,175
Business-lype activies:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 5 224934 § - $ - $ 224,934
Construction in Progress 7,677,721 3,277,136 2,400,002 8,554,855
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 7,902,655 3,277,138 2,400,002 8,779,789
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 1,721,927 - 6,681 1,715,246
Equipment 7,833,320 488,822 567,434 7,754,708
Plant 98,237,414 4,056,180 587,569 101,706,025
Total Capital assets being depreciated 107,792,661 4,545,002 1,161,684 111,175,979
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings 904,850 31,817 {7,420) 944,087
Equipment 5,479,163 406,764 516,234 5,369,693
Plant 40,348,098 2,850,405 677,005 42,521,498
Total accumulated depreciation 46,732,111 3,288,986 1,185,819 48,835,278
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 61,060,550 62,340,701
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 68,963,205 $ 71,120,480

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental aclivities as follows:

Govermnmental Function
General and administrative

Public safety
Public works

Health, recreation and welfare
Total depreciation expense

$ 239,900
201,839
150,097
756.501

1,348,337
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3.D. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Payables in the general fund and nonmajor governmental funds are composed of payables to vendors.

3.E. OPERATING LEASES

Various schools and the Board of Education have operating leases for the use of copiers. This cost is
recorded as instructional and administrative expenditures. The terms of these lease arrangements vary.

3.F. PREPAID MEALS

The amount for prepaid meals on the School Food Authority Fund reflects money that students and staff have
credited toward meals in the following school year. The overpayment amount may be refunded to persons or
applied to that person’s meal account in the following year. In the event that a student graduates, the
overpayment may be refunded or applied to another family member's meal account.

3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity's long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental
activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

Governmental Activities

As of June 30, 2014, the governmental long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of the
following:
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Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds

2010 General Obligation Refunding Bond dated
March 1, 2011, through September 1, 2019, bearing
interest rates of 2% to 3%.

2003 General Obligation Refunding Bonds dated
March 12, 2003, due December 1, 2003, through
December 1, 2016, bearing interest rates of 1.75% to 5.40%.

2012 General Obligation Scheol Bonds dated May 1,
2012, due June 1, 2013, through June 1, 2032, bearing
interest rates of 1.00 to 3.125%.

2009 Refunding and Improvement Bonds dated April 16, 2009,
due October 1, 2009 through April 1, 2034, bearing interest
rates of 2.00% to 5.00%,

2004 Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, due November 24, 2005,
through November 24, 2020, bearing 0% interest.

2012 General Obligation Bonds, dated October 18, 2012,
due April 1, 2013 through April 1, 2028, interest 1% to 2%.

Capital Outlay Notes

2005 capital outlay note. Interest 4.05% with final payment
due September 1, 2017.

2012 Energy Efficient School Initiative loan, due in monthly
payments of $2,936 thru 2022, bearing 0% interest.

Other Debt

Compensated absences
Unamortized debt premiums
Landfill closure costs

Total Government Activity Debt

2,390,000

500,000

6,325,000

1,260,000

528,702

297,752

190,000

273,060

11,764,514

1,182,243
7,730
220,937

13,175,424
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Business-type Activities

Revenue Bonds
2009 Gas Refunding Bonds, dated Aprit 16, 2009, due

October 1, 2009 through April 1, 2034, interest 2.00% to 5.00% $ 1,595,000
2011 Gas Refunding Bonds,
dated March 1, 2011, through March 1, 2019, interest 2.00% to 3.00%. 1,585,000

2011 Water Refunding Bonds,
dated March 1, 2011, through March 1, 2019, interest 2.00% to 3.00%. 1,755,000

2009 Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds, dated April 16, 2009, due
October 1, 2009 through April 1, 2034, interest 2.00% to 5.00% 5,740,000

2007 Electric Department Revenue Bonds, dated April 24, 2007,
due November 1, 2007 through May 1, 2032, bearing an
interest rate of 4.09%. 7,580,000

2011 Electric Plant Revenue Bonds, variable interest of
2.0% to 4.0% due serially through 2037 7,790,000

General Obligatoin Bonds
2012 General Obligation Bonds - Gas portion, dated October 18, 2012,

due April 1, 2013 through April 1, 2028, interest 1% to 2%. 20,412
2012 General Obligation Bonds, dated October 18, 2012,

due April 1, 2013 through April 1, 2028, interest 1% to 2%. 3,946,835
Other liabilities

Compensated absences 2,222,886
Unamortized debt premiums 56,432
Total Business-type Activites $ 32,291,565

Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2014:
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Balance issues or Balance Due within
71112013 Additions Retirements 6/30/2014 one year
Governmental Type Aclivities
General Obligation Bonds $ 12246993 § - % 945539 § 11,301,454 3 966,237
Notes Payable 608,292 - 145,232 463,060 80,232
Landfil! Closure Costs 221,243 - 306 220,937 -
Compensated Absences 1,074,348 107,895 - 1,182,243
Unamortized debt premiums 8,202 - 472 7.730 -
Total governmental type activities 14,159,078 107,895 1,091,549 13,175,424 1,046,469
Businesss Type Acltivities
Revenue Bonds 27,645,000 - 1,600,000 26,045,000 1,635,000
General Obligation Bonds 4,167,238 - 199,991 3,967,247 209,292
Compensated Absences 2,102,696 781,193 661,003 2,222,886 598,646
Unamortized debt premiums 60,733 - 4,301 56,432 -
Total business {ype activities 33,975,667 781,193 2,465,295 32,291,565 2,442,938
Total government $ 48,134,745 § 889,088 § 3556844 § 45466989 $ 3,489,407

Other Long-term liabilities

Governmental-type compensated absences have been paid in prior years by the General Fund. Landfill post
closure costs have been paid in prior years by the Solid Waste Fund.

Annual Requirements to Retire Debt Qutstanding

The annual aggregate maturities for each note payable for the years subsequent lo June 30, 2014 are as
follows:
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General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activitias Business-type Activitias Principal and
Year Ending Interest
June 30, Principal intarest Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 966,237 $ 287,806 ] 209,292 $ 64,076 $ 1,527.411
2016 987,633 267,059 227,896 61,983 1,544,571
2017 1,019,030 243,627 246,499 59,704 1,568,860
2018 850,077 223,411 260,452 57,240 1,391,180
2019 870,775 206,012 269,754 54,634 1,401,175
2020-2024 2,627,759 802,969 1,488,298 212,677 5,131,703
2025-2029 2,299,943 505,029 1,265,056 60,463 4,130,491
2030-2034 1,680,000 138,898 - - 1,818,898
Total $ 11,301,454 $ 2,674,811 $ 3.967.247 5 570,777 3 18,514,288
Notes Payable Revenue Bonds
Govarnmental Activities Business-type Activities
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Intarest Principal Interest
2015 3 80,232 $ 6,784 $ 1,635,000 3 937,964
2016 80,232 4,961 1.680,000 896,503
2017 85,232 3.038 1,295,000 856,350
2018 85,232 1,013 1,335,000 818,289
2019 35,232 - 1,370,000 776,525
2020-2024 96,900 - 5,075,000 3,306,962
2025-2029 - - 6,010,000 2,296,710
2030-2034 - - 6,190,000 987,771
2035-2038 - - 1,455,000 88,800
$ 463.060 $ 15,796 $ 26,045,000 $ 10,965,974
3.H. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Operating Transfers
TRANSFER TO
General
Schaol Capital School Purpose
General Water __ Tax Fund DARE Projects Debt School Totals
TRANSFER FROM
General 3 - s - $ 20000 § - $ 156,000 $ $ 680000 $ 856,000
Police Drug Fund - - 2,000 - - - 2,000
Solid Waste 86,266 - - - - 86,266
School Tax . - - - 969,480 383,000 1,352,480
Electric 743,851 - - . - 743,851
Water 103,936 - 103.936
Gas 147,020 4142 - 151,162
GRAND TOTALS $ 1081073 5 4,142 $ 20000 § 2000 $ 156,000 ] 969480 $ 1.063.000 S 3.2095,695

The transfers from General Fund to other various funds are all for operating expenses. The transfers from the
Water, Natural Gas, and Electric Funds to the General Fund are for in-lieu of taxes. Transfers from the Sales
Tax Fund to the School Debt Fund are for debt payments and capital outlay expenditures. The transfer from
the General Fund to the Capital Project Fund was for future projects.
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Interfund Receivables and Payables
DUE TO:
Capital Solid Water
General Projects Waste Systems Gas Totals

DUE FROM:
General 5 . § 157819 § - $ 901 § - $ 158,720
Solid Waste - - - - 732 732
Gas 25 - 49,866 519,141 - 569,032
Water Systems - - . - 22,327 22,327

$ 25 $ 157819 $ 49866 $§ 520042 § 23,059 § 750,811

Transactions arising from Water, Sewer, and Garbage Fund billing of utility services are recorded in these
accounts between the Gas, Water System, and Solid Waste Funds. The amounts due to the General Fund
from the Water and Gas Funds are for expenses paid by the General Fund and not yet reimbursed by the
other funds. The amount due to the Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund is for liquor tax receipts.

3.1. ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS

The State of Tennessee pays health insurance premiums for retired teachers on-behalf of the Lexington City
School System. These payments are made by the state to the Local Government Group Insurance Plan and
the Medicare Supplement Plan. Both of these plans are administered by the State of Tennessee and
reported in the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Payments by the state to the Local
Government Group Insurance Plan and the Medicare Supplement Plan for the year ended June 30, 2014
were $46,040 and $10,535, respectively. The System has recognized these on-behalf payments as revenues
and expenditures in the General Purpose School Fund.

NOTE 4, OTHER NOTES
4.A. EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plan Obligations:

Certain employees of the City, except school employees, are members of the City's contributory, defined
benefit pension plan, a single-employer plan. Schoo! department information is included in another note. The
plan was established by City ordinance and may be amended by such.

Summary of Plan Provisions
Effective Dale: May 1, 1973

Fiscal Year Beginning: 01/01/14

Eligibility Requirements: Minimum age of 20 and 12 minimum months of service. Entry date is the first day of
the month coinciding with or next following the date the requirements are met.
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Normal Relirement Date: First day of the month coinciding with or next following attainment of age 60. As of
January 1, 1999, all new participants must attain age 60 with 10 years of service.

Normal Retirement Benefit Formula;
Effective July 1, 2000 monthly annuity is equal to the sum of (1) and (2) below:
(1) 2.25% of the member's Average Monthly Earnings multiplied by years of Credited Service up to a
maximum of 30 years.
(2) 1.85% of member's Average Monthly Earnings multiplied by years of Credit Service in excess of 30
years.

For contributing members as of April 1, 1986, minimum monthly annuity is equal to 3.33% of member's
Average Monthly Earnings multiplied by years of credited service subject to a maximum of 15 years.
Members of the prior plan will receive a benefit no less than 40% of the average monthly earnings during the

period of 5 conseculive years in which his earnings were highest or 40% of his salary at age 64, whichever is
greater.

Average Monthly Earnings: The greater of (i} average of monthly compensation for the 5§ consecutive years
of highest compensation and (i} monthly compensation during the year immediately preceding the
participant's 60t birthday.

Credited Service: Number of years and completed months of active participation in this plan and the prior
plan.

Normal Form of Benefits: Single life annuity with 120 months certain.

Maximum Annua! Benefit: $ 210,000 as adjusted per IRC Sec. 415 for retirement age other than social
security retirement age and annuity form.

Employee Contributions: Monthly contributions equal to 6% of member's monthly earnings. Effective, July 1,
1999, these contributions will be made with pre-tax dollars.

Credited Interest: 5% per annum compounded annually.

Early Retirement Benefit: Minimum Age: 50; Minimum Service: 10 years; Benefit Amount: based on service
and earnings at termination, reduced actuarially.

Late Retirement Benefit: Normal retirement benefit increased 8% per annum for each year that retirement is
deferred.

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit: Member contributions credited with interest to the date of death.

Disability Benefit: Normal retirement benefit at date of disability reduced by the ratio of years of service at
disability to years of service projected to normal retirement date. The benefit will commence the first day of
the sixth month following determination of disability under the Social Security Act.

Vested Termination Benefit: A member who terminates employment with less than § years of credited service
may elect to receive, at any time prior to retirement, either: i) a return of member contributions with interest to
the date of payment, or ii) income payments at retirement provided by his own contributions with interest. A
member who terminates employment with 5 or more years of service will be entitled to a percentage of the
benefit earned based on years of credited service and average monthly earnings at separation from service.
The percentage is determined as follows:
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Years of Credited Service Percentage
Less than 5 0%
5 25%
6 40%
7 55%
8 70%
9 85%
10 or more 100%

Actuarial Valuation

An actuarial valuation was performed on the plan as of January 1, 2014. The actuarial cost method used was
the projected unit credit cost method. Under this method, annual contributions consist of normal cost plus
amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UL) over a fixed period of years, selected within the
minimum (10 years) and maximum (30 years) periods. Each year the maximum contribution is determined by
10-year amortization of the UL. The minimum contribution is determined by amoriization over the remaining
period at date of valuation. This period is 20 years as of January 1, 2014.

The present value of the participant's projected retirement, death and withdrawal benefits, including those
expected to be earned in the future, based on projected future service and compensation, is calculated. The
normal cosl for an active participant is equal to that present value, divided by his total prior and expected

future service. The actuarial accrued liability for an individual is that present value, multiplied by the ratio of
his prior service to his expected total service.

The unfunded accrued liability is the excess, if any, of the accrued liability over the plan assets.

Actuarial assumptions used for post-retirement, mortality from the 2014 Combined Static Mortality Table with
investment return of 7.0% per annum. For pre-retirement the mortality used was from the 2014 Combined
Static Mortality Table with investment return of 7.5% per annum, salary projection of 4.0% per annum,
retirement age of age 62 or current age if later.
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Actuarial Present Values of Accumulated Plan Benefils January 1, 2014
Vested Benefits
Participants currently receiving payments 3 234,806
Other Participants
Active Employees 6,465,103
Deceased and Disabled Employees 83,289
Deferred Vested Terminated Employees 534,060
Total - Other Participants 7,082,452
Total Vested Benefits 7,317,258
Nonvested Benefits 1,002,236
Total Actuarial Present Values of Accumulated Plan Benefits $ 8,319,494

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Plan Benefits

Actuarial Present Value of Accumulated Plan Benefits at Beginning of Year % 7,685,677
Increase (decrease) during the year attributable to:
Benefits paid {459,145)
Interest due to change in the discount period 576,426
Assumption change 24,278
Plan amendment =
Benefits accumulated and actuarial gains and losses 492,258
Actuarial Present Value of Accumulated Plan Benefits at End of Year 3 8,319,494
Discount Assumption:
Pre-retirement 7.50%
Post-retirement 7.00%

The City began offering a 403(b) defined contribution plan to their eligible employees hired after April 1, 2012.
The City matches their employee's confributions, which can be up to 6% of the employee's annual
compensation. The employer's contributions are not vested until after five annual periods in the plan. The
City's current year contributions to the plan were $31,057.

Electric System

Plan Description
The Board provides all retirement benefits for employees through a single-employer, defined benefit plan.

Under the plan, all full-time employees are eligible. The System's payroll for employees covered by the plan
for the year ended June 30, 2014, was $2,628,452 and the total payroll for the year was $3,139,729.

All employees of the System become participants on the first day of the calendar month on or immediately
after completion of one year of service and attainment of age 20. The Plan provides normal retirement
benefits at age 60. Effective March 1, 2000, the monthly annuity is equal to the sum of 2.25% of the
members Average Monthly Earnings multiplied by years of Credited Service for the member's first 30 years of
Credited Service and 1.85% of the member's Average Monthly Earnings, multiplied by years of Credited
Service in excess of 30 years. For contributing members as of April 1, 1986, minimum monthly annuity will
equal to 3.33% of member's Average Monthly Earnings multiplied by years of Credited Service subject to a
maximum of 15 years. A member of the plan will receive a benefit of no less than 40% of the average of
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monthly earnings during the periocd of 5 consecutive years in which his earnings were highest or 40% of his
salary at age 64, whichever is greater. Average Monthly Earnings means the greater of (1) the average of
monthly compensation for the 5 consecutive years of highest compensation, and (2) monthly compensation
during the year immediately preceding the participant's 60 birthday. Maximum annual compensation is
$195,000. A reduced retirement benefit is available to employees upon early retirement.

Funding Policy

System employees are required to contribute 6% of their monthly earnings on a monthly basis.
Recommended contributions to the plan are determined each year as part of the Actuarial Valuation process.
The Projected Unit cost method is used under this plan, Under this method, annual contributions consist of
normal cost plus amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a fixed period of years, selected
within the minimum (10 years) and maximum (5 to 30 years) periods permitted by law.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the System's annual pension cost of $671,883 was made in accordance
with actuarially determined requirements computed through an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1,
2012. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the investment of
present and future assets of 7.5% a year and (b) 4.0% projected salary increases.

Year Annual Percentage Net
Ended Required of APC Pension
June 30, Contribution (ARC)  Contributed Obligation
2005 E 291,565 105.82% $ 76,928
2006 355,927 86.13% 125,010
2007 393,254 93.06% 148,825
2008 411,050 79.52% 227,954
2009 434,982 89.07% 266,054
2010 577,370 68.94% 433,557
2011 634,550 80.41% 536,915
2012 615,170 71.4%% 687,302
2013 625,883 107.48% 608,462
2014 618,726 107.23% 529,255

Electric System

The System began offering a 403(b} defined contribution plan to their eligible employees hired after April 1,
2012. The System matches their employee's contributions, which can be up to 6% of the employee's annual
compensation. The employer's contributions are not vested until after five annual periods in the plan. The
System's current year contributions to the plan were $8,387.

School Department

Professional Staff:

Plan Description

The Lexington City School System contributes to the State Employee, Teachers, and Higher Education
Employees Plan (SETHEPP), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Tennessee Consclidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as
death and disability benefits lo plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determined by a formula
using the member’s high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible 1o retire at
the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is
available to vested members who are at least 55 years of age or 25 years of service. Disability benefits are
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available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury while the
member was in performance of duty. Members joining the plan on or after July 1, 1979, are vested after five
years of service. Members joining prior to July 1, 1979, are vested after four years of service. Benefit
provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated
(TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Cost of living adjustments (COLA)
are provided to retirees each July based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (CP!) during
the previous calendar year. No COLA is granled if the CPI increases less than one-half percent. The
maximum annual COLA is capped at three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the SETHEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN
37243-0230 or can be accessed at www treasury.state.tn.us.

Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute 5% of salary to the plan. The employer contribution
rate for Lexington City School System is established at an actuarially determined rate. The rate for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2014, was 8.88% of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution requirement for
Lexington City School System is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The
employer's contributions to TCRS for the years ending June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, were $365,390,
$357,940, and $365,668, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Non-Professional Staff:

The non-professional staff members of the System may elect a retirement plan option. The Lexington City
School Board authorized funds for a 403-b tax sheltered individual annuity plan for each of the 25 qualifying
individuals. The system would match a minimum of $300 for the individual staff's $300, for a total of $600
required as a minimum contribution by Horace Mann authorized carriers to provide the plan. The system
would maich 3.5% of staff total yearly salary, with minimum match of $300. Total contributions by the system
amounted to $ 14,701 for the 13-14 school year.

4.B. POST EMPLOYEMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN - Electric System

Plan Description — Lexington Electric System sponsors a single-employer post-retirement benefit plan. The
plan provides medical, dental, cancer and death benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses.

Funding Policy — The System intends to continue its policy of funding OPEB liabilities on a pay-go basis and
to not pre-fund any unfunded annual required contributions as determined under GASB 45,

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The System’s annual other post-retirement benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following
table shows the components of the System’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed
to the plan, and changes in the System's net OPEB obligation.
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Components of Net OPEB Obligation

Annual required contribution $ 272624
Interest on Net OPEB obligation 23,709
Adjustment to annual required contribution (29.039)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 267,298
Contributions and subsidy (97.133)
Increase in net obligation 170,165
Nel OPEB obligation (BOY) 592,724
Net OPEB (asset) obligation (EQY) $ 762,889

The System’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the 2014 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2014 $ 267,299 20.10% $ 762,889
6/30/2013 255,272 21.51% 592,724
6/30/2012 242,722 20.12% 392,360
6/30/2011 261,396 73.00% 196,464
6/30/2010 252,905 73.00% 146,868

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was 0% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefils was $2,942,183 and the actuarial value of
assets was $0 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAT) of $2,942,183. The covered payroll

{annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,298,159 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 128.0%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assels is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and includes the type of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended
rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments
calculated based on the funded level of the plan assets at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost
trend rate of 8.5% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after ten years. The actuarial
value of assets was determined using a standard balanced portfolio expectation for retirement plan asset
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returns. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on an open bhasis. The remaining
amortization period at July 1, 2011 was 30 years.

4.C. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participates in the Tennessee Municipal
League Risk Management Pool, a public entity risk pool, for errors and omissions, automabile liability and
physical damage, workers compensation, and employees’ liability. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the three past fiscal years. The Tennessee
Municipal League Risk Management Pool has been self-sustaining through member premiums. Members
consist of local jurisdiction municipalities and utility districts in the state. Members are responsible for a pro-
rata portion of claims which exceed the Pool's reserves. No additional assessments have ever been made by
the Pool to its members as a result of losses experienced.

School System

The System participates in the Tennessee Boards Risk Management Trust (TSB-RMT), which is a public
entity risk pool established by the Tennessee Boards Association, an association of member school districts.
The System pays an annual premium to the TSB-RMT for its general liability, property, casualty and worker's
compensation insurance coverage. The creation of the TSB-RMT provides for it to be self-sustaining through
member premiums. The TSB-RMT reinsures through commercial insurance companies for claims exceeding
$100,000 for each insured event. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the three past fiscal years.

Electric System

The System is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage te, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended June 30, 2014 the
System purchased commercial insurance for all of the above risks. Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the past three years and there has been no significant reduction in the amount
of coverage provided.

4.D. LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE COSTS

In prior years the City has jointly operated a landfill with Henderson County. This landfill is now closed. State
and federal laws and regulations required the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stopped
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure. The City will report a portion of postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each fiscal year.
The City has recognized postclosure costs of $220,937 as a long-term lizbility in the statement of net position.
These amounts are based on what it would currently cost to perform all postclosure care. Actual cost may be
higher due to inflation or deflation, technology, or applicable laws or regulations.

4.E. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City is a defendant in various lawsuiis brought against it. The City cannot predict the outcome of these
cases and it is possible losses could be incurred. The amount of such possible losses cannot be determined.

Electric System

The electric system has a power contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) whereby the electric
systern purchases all its electric power from TVA and is subject to certain restrictions as provided for in the
power contract. Such restrictions include, but are not limited to, prohibitions against furnishings, advancing,
lending, pledging or otherwise diverting system funds, revenues or property to other operations of the county
and the purchase or payment of, or providing security for indebtedness on other obligations applicable to such
other operations.
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4.F. IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Electric Department

In June 2011, GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, which are distinct from assets and liabilities,
and also renames as net position, rather than net assets, the residual of all other elements presented in
a statement of financial position. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements
for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.
GASB 65 establishes accounting and financia! reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows
of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilittes. This statement is effective for financial periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The
System will continue to report bond issue costs as an asset and amortize those over the life of the bonds
instead of expensing those costs in the current year in accordance with certain provisions included in
GASB 62 - Caodification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA pronouncements. This regulatory option as part of GASB 65 is available due
to the above mentioned costs being used for rate setting by the System. As of June 30, 2014 the
System had no deferred outflows or inflows of resources to report.

All Departments of the City

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an amendment
of GASB Statement 25, and Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an
amendment of GAS8 Statement No. 27. Statement 67, effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2013, revises existing standards of financial reporting by state and local government pension plans
and will be adopted by the pension plan itself. Statement 68 will affect the governments that participate
as employers in these plans and is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. For
governments to adopt Statement 68, the underiying pension plans must first adopt Statement 67. These
statements establish a definition of a pension plan that reflects the primary activities associated with the
pension arrangement - determining pensions, accumulated and managing assets dedicated for
pensions, and paying benefits to plan members as they come due. Statement 68 details the recognition
and disclosure requirements for employers with liabilities (payables) to a defined benefit pension plan
and for employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution pensions. The objective of
Statement 68 is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for
pensions. These pension standards include significant changes to how governmental employers will
report liabilities related to pension obligations.

4.G. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A prior pefiod adjustment was made on the Water System to record a payable to a customer that had
been overbilled in prior years for water and sewer in the amount of $110,684.

A prior period adjustment was made to the Governmental Activities on the Government-Wide Statement
of Activities for construction in progress at June 30, 2013 that was not properly recorded in the amount
of $99,401.
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4.H. CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS

Lexington Gas System

The System has a bypass project with estimated costs of $134,903. As of June 30, 2014, there is
approximately $86,146 remaining to complete this project. The System has $31,392 that is to be
reimbursed by the Department of Transportation to help with these remaining costs.

Lexington Water System

The System has several construction projects in process at June 30, 2014. Commitments for these
projects are described below.

The System has a sewer bypass project with estimated costs of $157,205. As of June 30, 2014, there is
approximately $136,899 remaining to complete this project. The System has $39,338 that is to be
reimbursed by the Department of Transportation to help with these remaining costs.

The System has a water bypass project with estimated costs of $165,550. As of June 30, 2014, there is
approximately $109,086 remaining to complete this project. The System has $40,468 that is to be
reimbursed by the Department of Transportation to help with these remaining costs.

The System has a sewer disaster recovery project with costs of $967,940. As of June 30, 2014 there is
$808,374 remaining to complete this project which is to be fully funded with grant funds.

The System has a sewer improvement project with costs of $823,300. As of June 30, 2014 there is
$794,155 remaining to complete this project. The System has been approved for a $500,000 grant to
help fund this project.

City of Lexington
The General Fund has an upcoming sidewalk/multimodal project with costs of $664,775. The City has
been approved for a $631,536 grant to help fund this project.

The city is a defendant in a lawsuit brought against it. The City cannot predict the outcome of this case
and it is possible a Ioss could be incurred. The amount of such a possible loss cannot be determined.
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UAALas a
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual Percentage
Actuarlal Value of Accrued Accrued Liability Funded Cavered of Annual
Valuation Assets Liability {AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b-a} {alb} {c) {{b-a)ic)
11/2014  § 7,753,920 $ 9,584,178 $ 1,830,258 8090% 54,075,748 44 91%
1/1/2013 6,654,311 8,882,526 2,228,215 74.91% 4,306,398 51.74%
1112012 5,645,217 8,077,844 2,432,627 69.89% 4,318,514 56.33%
112011 5,263,575 7,416,172 2,152,597 70.97% 4,595,481 46.84%
11112010 4,474,711 6,579,039 2,104,328 6B.01% 4,628,511 45.46%
1/1/2009 3,364,586 5,714,387 2,349,801 58 88% 4,221,025 55.67%
11172008 3,450,120 4,708,371 1,258,251 73.28% 3,644,686 34.52%
1142007 2,721,571 4,208,514 1,484,943 64.70% 3,541,656 41.93%
11142006 2,186,366 3,609,216 1,422,850 60.58% 3,108,489 4577%
1/1/2005 3,665,785 4,636,744 970,959 79.06% 3,239,833 29.97%
17112004 3,254,596 4,145,005 890,409 78.52% 3,006,230 29.62%
Scheduie of Employer Contribution
Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
June 30, Contribution Contribution Contrlbutaed
2014 S 487,406 $ 512,722 105.19%
2013 501,948 811,119 161.59%
2012 427,381 289,500 67.74%
2011 298,640 269,407 67.58%
2010 386,982 320,248 B2 76%
2009 261,914 381,582 145.69%
2008 290,636 242,848 83 56%
2007 247,300 267,291 108 08%
20086 213,923 213,923 100.00%
2005 195,826 232,628 118.78%
2004 185,129 185,129 100.00%
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT RETIREMENT SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarlal Unfunded Annual Parcentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Valuation Assats Liability (AAL} {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {a) {b} {b-a) {arb) {c} {{b-a)/c}
7112013 5§ 6,050,953 $ 10,059,855 S 4,008,902 60.15%  $2.412,526 166 17%
7112012 4,903,892 9,039,638 4,135,746 54,25% 2,367,840 174 66%
TMi2011 4,498,615 8,639,525 4,140,910 52.07% 2,243,050 184 61%
7172010 4,048,748 7,645,387 3,596,639 52.96% 2,380,389 151.09%
7112009 3,735,311 7,168,167 3,432,856 52 11% 2,280.295 150.54%
71142008 3,548,113 6,140,101 2,591,988 57 79% 2,058,102 12594%
7112007 2,926,987 §,279,482 2,352,495 55 44% 2,085,068 112.83%
7142006 2,300,623 4,840,881 2,540,258 47 .52% 1,965,177 129.26%
7/1/2005 1,783,470 4,273,195 2,489,725 41.74% 1,886,617 131.97%
7/1/2004 4,768,022 6,281,761 1,513,738 75.90% 2304175 65.70%
ELECTRIC DEFARTMENT POST-EMPLOYMENT SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Annual
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) {UAAL) Ratlo Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b-a) {a/b) {c} {{b-a)ic}
720011 § - $ 2,942,183 $ 2,842,183 000%  $2.298.159 128 02%
71112008 - 3,355,294 3,355,294 0.00% 2,192,591 153.03%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial atatements.
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Information relating to the City's pension can be found in the Notes to Financial
Statements at Note 4.A. The schedule of funding progress is designed to reflect
the pension plan’s success over time in setting aside assets sufficient to cover its
actuarial accrued liability.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL. AGENCY FUNDS

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND

ASSETS
Cash

Accounts receivable

Liabilities

Due fo student groups
Accounts Payable

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Balance Balance

71112013 Additions Deductions 6/30/2014

$ 55751 $ 218,970 $ 210,819 $ 63902
- 27 - 27

$ 55751 $ 218,997 $ 210,819 $§ 63929

$ 55202 $ 218,997 $ 210,270 $ 63,929
549 - 549 -

$ 55751 $ 218,997 $ 210,819 $ 63,928

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

STATE STREET AID FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

State gas and motor fuel tax 3 198,260 $ 195000 $ 135761 $ {59,239)

State gas 1989 tax - - 21,783 21,783

Stale gas three cent tax - - 40,428 40,429
Other revenues

Interest income s - 4 4
Total revenues 198,260 195,000 197,977 2,977
Expenditures;

Public Works:

Sireet lighting 198,000 191,500 190,931 569
Total expenditures 198,000 191,500 180,931 569
Revenues over (under) Expenditures 260 3,500 7.046 3,546
Other financing sources and uses:

Transfers out - - - -
Total Other financing sources and uses - & = -
Net change in fund balances 260 3,500 7,046 3,546
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 35,825 35.825 35,825 -
Fund Balance at End of Year b 36,085 $ 39,325 3 42,871 3 3,546

The accompanytng notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

SCHOOL TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20114

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes

Local option sales tax 3 1320965 S 1,295000 & 1,295,190 § 190
Other revenues:

Interest income 16,350 16,850 17.300 450
Total Revenues 1,337,315 1,311,850 1,312,490 640
Expenditures:

Heaith, Welfare and Recreation

Operating costs 2,500 3,000 2.905 95

Paying agent fees 2,000 2,500 2,432 &8
Total Expenditures 4,500 5,500 5,337 163
Revenues over (under) Expenditures 1,332,815 1,306,350 1,307,153 803
Other financing sources and uses:

Transfers in 20,000 20,000 20,000 -

Transfers out (1,352,481) (1,352,481} (1.352,480) 1
Total Other financing sources and uses (1,332,481) (1,332,481) {1.332.480) 1
Net Change in Fund Balances 334 (26,131) (25327} 804
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 309,133 309,133 309,133 -
Fund Balance at End of Year 8 308467 S 283,002 5 283,806 S 804

The accompanying notas are an integral part of these financial statements.



Revenues

Payment for lunches
Student
Adult

Payment for braakiast
Studant

USDA - lunch programs

USDA - braakfast programs.

USDA - commeditias

USDA - other

State matching funds

Other grant revenues

A La Carte sales

Ravenuas from incividual schools

Interest incoma

Other revenueas

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Food supplies
Personnel expendituras
Supervisoridirector
Accountants and bookkeepers
Cafetena personnel
Other salaries and wages
Inservice Iraning
Social sacynly
Medical insurance
Dental insurance
Unempioymeni compensation
Retrement
Employer medicare
Duas and memberships
Operations and maintenance
Maintenance and repa
Nanlood supplies
Food preparation suppfies
Office supplies
Unifarms
Other supplhes and matenais
Othar
Travet
Qlher contracied services
QOther tAnsponaton
Inservicelstatt devetopment
Qther charges
Equipment
Total Expendiiures

E (deficiency) of

over {under) expendliures
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as originalty stated
Change in reserve for Inventory

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balance at End of Year

The sccampanylng notes sre an integral part of thesa linanclal statemants.

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actual
Ravenue! Variance with
Less; Add: Expendiiures Final Budget
Budget t Actual Encumbrances E b {Budgetary Posliive
Qriginal Flnal {GAAP Basis) 7172012 613012013 Basis) {Negative)

H 100 000 5 75500 H 75602 ] - s . s 75602 % 102
21.000 15,700 15,761 - - 15,761 61
35,000 35,000 36285 - - 36.285 1.285

258,000 258,000 253,779 B - 253779 14,221}
118.000 118,000 134,884 = - 134,884 16,884
42,000 42,000 37,859 - 37.859 {4,141]
8,000 8000 7.218 - - 7.278 (722}
5884 5884 5777 . 5777 {107}
2,000 2,000 2.000 - . 2.000 -
31,000 31.000 44 411 - - 44,411 1341
36.000 36 000 30,003 - - 30,003 (5997}
500 500 358 - 356 {144}
- - £92 - - 592 592
€57.384 627.884 £44.587 . - 644 587 17.003
312000 277187 262,350 - 262350 14,837
27,840 27,640 27,639 - 27,639 1
17.520 17.520 17,519 - 17,519 1
191,915 191,946 184212 - 184212 7734
4,000 4,000 - - - - 4,000
1,650 1,799 1,293 s - 1,293 506
14,235 14 235 13,027 - - 13,027 1.208
47,070 45641 49,597 - 4g.5a7 a4
1,242 1,361 1224 - 1,224 137
975 1,037 967 - 957 70
3.200 3203 3186 - 3,188 17
3.300 3.300 3047 - - 3047 253
249 240 a1 - 81 159
10,000 6500 3668 . 2,868 2632
20000 20,000 15089 . 15,009 4901
2035 2,035 1557 - 1.557 478
1,000 1,000 11 - 911 B9
5000 5,822 5822 - 5822 -
100 100 - a - 100
10,000 10,000 9001 - 9001 999
2500 8000 4403 4403 1597
4920 5965 5.965 5965 -
100 33 32 . - 312 1
2.500 2.500 1.334 - 1,334 1.166
£83.142 £51.244 512,414 - - 612414 40.530
(25.758) {25.760} 32173 - - 32,173 57.933
104,072 104,072 104,072 . - 104,072 -
o o (273 - - {270) {270}
104.072 104.072 103.802 - - 103 802 {270}
$ 78,314 5 78.312 -1 135.975 S = § 5 125 8975 S 5756_3_
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative}
Revenues:
Charges for Services
Collection charges $ 600,000 $ 601,500 $ 604138 $ 2638
Landfill use fees 55,000 53,000 §52.925 (75)
Other revenues
Miscellaneous income 11.000 6,500 6,349 {151)
Total revenues 666,000 661,000 663.412 2412
Expenditures
Public Works:
Salaries 250,750 237,500 237,399 101
Payroll taxes 19,182 17,150 17,097 53
Haospital and health insurance 53,900 50,000 45,546 454
Workers compensation insurance 24,300 14,500 13.896 604
Unemployment insurance 630 750 703 47
Utilities 1,900 2,300 2,202 98
Telephone 500 500 431 g
Consultant's services 1,000 1,000 - 1.000
Tires, flats, etc 8,000 8,000 7483 517
R&M vehicles 10,000 13,000 11,784 1,216
R&M machinery and equipment 5,000 5,000 3,363 1,637
R&M grounds 500 500 60 440
R&M buildings 500 500 54 446
R&M other 500 1,500 1,322 178
Office supplies 1,000 750 4389 251
Operating supplies 1,500 750 206 544
Other operating 33,550 28,000 27,015 985
Janitorial supplies 200 200 B0 120
Clothing and uniforms 2,450 2,450 2,296 154
Fuel supplies 44,000 41,000 39,368 1,632
Consumable tools 250 500 167 333
Small items of equipment - 1,000 380 620
Safety supplies 1,800 1,500 1,417 83
insurance 8,000 8,100 7,880 220
Tipping fees 150,000 145,500 144,933 567
Permit fees 3,300 3,300 3,075 225
Soil testing 3,500 3,500 3,326 174
Bad debt expense 10,000 7,000 8,680 (1,680)
New cell 5,000 2,350 - 2,350
Total expenditures 640,912 598,100 584,722 13,378
Revenues over (under) expenditures 25,088 62,900 78,690 15,790
Other financing sources and uses:
Transfers in {out) (25.088) {62,900} (86,265) (23,365)
Net change in fund balances - - {7,575) {7.575)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 66,632 66,632 66,632 -
Fund Balance at End of Year 3 66,632 $ 66,632 $ 59,057 $ (7.575)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
DARE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Other revenues
Miscellaneous $ - 3 100 ] 147 $ 47
Total revenues - 100 147 47
Expenditures:
Public Safety
Public relations 2,000 2,100 2,072 28
Total expenditures 2,000 2,100 2,072 28
Revenues over {under) expenditures {2.000) (2,000) {1,925) 75
Other financing sources and uses:
Transfers in 2,000 2.000 2,000 -
Net change in fund balances - - 75 75
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,226 1,226 1,226 -
Fund Balance at End of Year 3 1,226 3 1,226 $ 1,301 3 75

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE

POLICE DRUG FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties.
Drug related fines § 20,000 $§ 17,440 $ 17,443 3 3
Forfeitures 37,500 41,800 42,295 495
Sale of seized property 55,000 62,600 58,263 (4,337)
Other revenues:
Interest income 200 325 351 28
Miscelianeous income - 175 175 -
Total revenues 112,700 122,340 118,527 (3,813)
Expenditures:
Public Safety.
Salaries 34,400 34,400 34,400 -
Vehicle tow (seized property) 1,000 1,000 675 325
Telephone 1,700 1,850 1,746 104
Repair and maintenance 2,000 1,000 212 788
Operating costs 12,000 14,000 12,264 1,736
Educational costs 2,000 2,000 50 1,950
Smalt items of equipment - - 15,219 (15,219)
Capital outlay 57,600 66,090 24,926 41,164
Total expenditures 110,700 120,340 89,492 30,848
Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,000 2,000 29,035 27,035
Other financing sources and uses:
Sale of capital assets - - 4,350 4,350
Transfer out (2,000) (2,000) {2,000 -
Total other financing sources and uses (2,000} {2.000) 2,350 4,350
Net change in fund balances - - 31,385 31,385
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 29,530 29,530 29,530 -
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 29,530 $ 29,530 3 60915 $ 31,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
DEBT SERVICE - SINKING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues:

Other revenues
Rent - U. 5. Post Office
Interest income
Insurance recoveries

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Health, Welfare and Recreation.
Repair and mainienance
Insurance

Debt Service:

Principal payments

Interest payments

Paying agent fees
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources and uses:
Transfer out

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Finat Amounts {Negative)
$ 196,000 $ 196,000 $ 196,000 3 -
- - 20 20
- 17.244 17,244 -
196,000 213,244 213,264 20
5,000 25,000 2.302 22 698
4,500 5,000 4976 24
150.000 150,000 150,000 -
31,050 31,050 31,050 -
1,500 1,500 1.154 346
192,050 212,550 189,482 23,068
3,950 694 23.782 23.088
3,950 694 23,782 23,088
29,965 29,965 29,965 -
5 33,915 $ 30,659 $ 53,747 $ 23,088

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
DEBT SERVICE - SCHOOL DEBT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Other revenugs 5 - $ - $ - $ -
Expenditures:

Debt Service:

Principal payments 740,529 750,000 748,776 1,224

Interest payments 217,979 221,000 220,704 296

Paying agent fees - - - -
Total expenditures 958,508 971,000 969.480 1,520
Revenues over (under) expenditures (958.508) {971,000} (969.480) 1.620
Other financing sources and uses:

Transfars in 958,508 971,000 969,480 {1,520)
Total other financing sources and uses 958,508 971.000 969,480 (1,520}
Net change in fund balances - - - -
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year - - - -
Fund Balance at End of Year 3 - 5 - 3 - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenues:
Taxes:
Liquor taxes
Other revenues:
Interest income
Donations
Fireworks contributions
Insurance recoveries
Miscellaneous income
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Health, welfare and recreation:
Fireworks
Public functions
Museum exhibits
Museum improvements
General computer and lighting
Repair and maintenance
Repairs - storm damage
Capital projects

Total Expenditures

Revenues over (under) Expenditures

Other financing sources and uses:
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL PROJECTS - POST OFFICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Finai Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
5 137,000 $ 126,000 $ 130,090 $ 4,090
150 150 216 66
- 500 500 -
11,100 11,100 10,550 (550)
- 136,985 139,039 2,054
- 35,520 35,524 4
148,250 310,255 315,919 5,664
11,100 11,100 10,314 786
3,300 2,800 632 2,168
- 500 250 250
12,970 - - -
27,680 60,000 - 60,000
- 141,000 140,999 1
- 3,055 3.053 2
112,750 132,750 - 132,750
167,800 351,205 155,248 195,957
(19,550) {40,950) 160,671 201,621
- 156,000 156,000 -
(19,550) 115,050 316,671 201,621
193,126 193,126 193,126 -
3 173,576 $ 308,176 $ 509,797 $ 201,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE
JUNE 30, 2014

Levy Qutstanding Releases Qutstanding
for Tax Assessed Original Taxes Taxes and Taxes

Year Rate Value Tax Levy Beginning Levied Adjustments  Collections Ending
2014 $1.23 $173,711.509 § 2127272 s - $ 2127272 $ - $ - $ 2,127.272
2013 1.23 176.525.774 2,171,302 2,136 686 34618 {185) 2070297 100,820
2012 1.23 175,045.704 2165379 83572 . 3718 76619 10,671
2011 1.23 172,560,623 2122526 14,089 . {5) 13,896 188
2010 086 160,123,486 1.377.074 B . - 5 -
2009 086 160 348,230 1.378 984 - - - -
2008 086 157 854 649 1.357.547 - - - -
2007 086 161,370,663 1,387 770 - - - - -
2008 088 163,745,473 1,408 213 - - - - -
2005 o7 166,009,807 1,156 847 - - . 5 "
2004 075 147.415.262 1,084 969 - - - - -
2003 075 140,461,875 1,081,818 - - - - -
2002 075 135,825 925 1,018,798 128 - {128) - -
2001 075 129,764 140 1,018,037 75 - - - 75

$2234550 5 2.161.888 3 3,400 5 2160812 5 2,239.026
e e A ———

The sccompanying noles 3re an integral part of these financlal statemnemis,
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS - WATER SYSTEMS
JUNE 30, 2014

E::?r:g 2012 General QObligation Bonds 2009 Refunding Bonds 2011 Refunding Bonds Totals
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 08215 3 63746 § 195000 8 239,758 & 535000 % 388 3 958215 § 337,312
2016 226,723 61,664 205,000 233908 565,000 22607 995,723 38,179
2017 24523 59,397 210,000 227,758 155,000 15,290 610,231 302,445
2018 259,112 56,945 215,000 221,458 155,000 11,687 629,112 290,090
2019 268,366 54,353 220,000 214,740 160,000 7,350 648,366 276,443
2020 277620 51,401 230,000 203,740 165,000 2475 672,620 257,616
2021 286,874 47,653 235,000 194,540 - - 521,874 242,193
2022 296,128 43,494 245,000 185,140 - - 541,128 228,634
2023 305,382 37,571 255,000 175,340 - . 560,382 212,911
2024 34636 31,464 265,000 165,140 - - 579,636 196,604
2025 328,517 25171 280,000 154,540 - - 08,517 178,711
2026 342,398 18,601 295,000 142,990 - - 637,398 161,591
2027 356,279 11,753 305,000 130,452 - - 661,279 142,205
2028 231,354 4627 320,000 117,108 - - 551,354 121,735
2029 - . 335,000 103,109 - - 335,000 103,109
2030 - - 350,000 88,368 - - 350,000 88,368
200 - - 365,000 72,618 - - 365000 12618
2032 - - 380,000 56,194 - - 380,000 56,194
2033 . - 405,000 38,618 - - 405,000 38,618
2034 - - 430,000 19.888 - - 430,000 19,588

$ 3946835 5 567840 S 5740000 § 2985407 § 1755000 § 93217 § 11441835  §3.646,464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS - NATURAL GAS FUND
JUNE 30, 2014

E::?r:g 2012 General Obligation Bonds 2009 Refunding Bonds 2011 Refunding Bonds Totals
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 1] 1,077 g 330 ] 55,000 $ 66,711 $ 305000 S 34047 §  361.077 5 101.088
2016 1,173 39 55.000 65,061 310,000 27,898 366,173 93,278
2017 1,268 307 55,000 63.411 315000 21,41 371,268 85,129
2018 1.340 285 €0,000 61,761 325.000 13,862 386 340 76,018
2019 1.388 281 60,000 59,886 330,000 4,950 391,388 65117
2020 1.436 266 60,000 56,886 - - 61436 57.152
2021 1.484 246 65,000 54 486 - - 66,484 54,732
2022 1,632 225 70.000 51.886 - - 71,532 52,111
2023 1,579 194 70.000 49,086 - - 71,578 49 280
2024 1,627 183 75,000 46,286 - . 76627 46 449
2025 1,699 130 75,000 43286 - - 76699 43 416
2026 1.77 96 80,000 40192 - - 81,771 40,288
2027 1,843 &1 85.000 36792 - - 86,843 36,853
2028 1,195 24 90.000 33073 - - 91,185 33 097
2029 - - 95.000 29,136 - - 85 000 29,136
2030 . . 100,000 24 956 - - 100 000 24 956
2031 - - 100,000 20,456 - - 100.000 20,456
2032 - - 110 .000 15,958 - - 110 000 15,956
2033 - - 115000 10,868 - - 115,000 10,868
2034 - - 120.000 5.550 - - 120,000 5.550

$ 20,412 3 2.937 % 1,595.000 § 835725 $ 1585000 S 102,268 _§ 3200412 S 940.930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS - LEXINGTON ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT
JUNE 30, 2014

E\l;z?l:g Serles 2007 Revenue Bonds Series 2011Revenue Bonds Totals
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 $ 290000 § 310,022 § 235000 $ 253,618 $ 525,000 $ 563,640
2016 305,000 298,161 240,000 248,868 545,000 547,029
2017 315,000 285,687 245,000 242,793 560,000 528,480
2018 330,000 272,803 250,000 236,618 580,000 509,421
2018 345,000 259,306 255,000 230,293 600,000 489,599
2020 355,000 245195 265,000 223,156 620,000 468,351
2021 370,000 230,876 270,000 216,806 640,000 447 482
2022 390,000 215,543 280,000 210,268 670,000 425811
2023 405,000 199,592 290,000 202,962 695,000 402 554
2024 420,000 183,028 295,000 184,731 715,000 377,759
2025 440,000 165,849 310,000 185,656 750,000 351,505
2026 455,000 147,854 320,000 176,006 775,000 323,860
2027 475,000 129,244 335,000 165,562 810,000 294 806
2028 495,000 109,817 345,000 154,297 840,000 264,114
2029 515,000 89,571 360,000 142,176 875,000 231,747
2030 535,000 68,507 375,000 129,079 910,000 197,586
2031 560,000 46,626 390,000 114,969 950,000 161,595
2032 580,000 23,722 405,000 100,062 985,000 123,784
2033 - - 425,000 84,234 425,000 84,234
2034 - - 445,000 67,100 445,000 67,100
2035 - - 465,000 48,900 465,000 48,900
2036 - - 485,000 29,900 485,000 29,900
2037 - - 505,000 10,100 505,000 10,100

$ 7,580,000 53281203 _5$7.790,000 b 3,668,154 $15,370,000 $ 6,949,357

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING DELINQUENT TAXES FILED WIiTH CHANCERY COURT
JUNE 30, 2014

Tax Outstanding

Year Balance
2012 $ 10,671
2011 188
2009 -
2008 -
2007 -
2006 -
2005 -
2004 -
2003 -
2002 -
2001 75

Total $ 10,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JUNE 30, 2014

CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE

GAS FUND

Residentlal Rate __Minimum _ BaseRale + _PGARale

First 500 cubic feet (minimum) 5 870

Over 500 cubic feet: Inside city {per MCF) 5 180 + current PGA = Rate Per Cubic Foot
Qutside city [per MCF) $ 230 + cumentPGA = Rate Per Cubic Foot

Small Commercial Rate

First 500 cubic feet {minimum) H 7.50

Over 500 cubic fest’ Inside city {per MCF) $§ 240 + curenIPGA = Rate Per Cutvc Fool
Quiside city (per MCF) § 320 + cumemtPGA = Rate Per Cubic Foot

Medium Commerclal Rate

First 500 cubic feet (minimum} H 24.85

Over 500 cubic feet: Inside city (per MCF) § 280 + cumentPGA = Rate Per Cubic Foot
Outside city {(per MCF) § 340 + current PGA = Rale Per Cubic Foot

Large Commaercial Rate

First 500 cubic feel [minimum} $ 124 60

Over 500 cubic feet Inside city (per MCF) 5 270 + curmenl PGA = Rate Per Cubic Fool
Outside city (per MCF) § 350 + current PGA = Rate Per Cubic Fool

Transport (Customer buys from 3rd party) 5 188

Number of customers at year end; 8,957

+ PGA (Purchased Gas Adjustment] - This Rate is set monthly from calculations based on the average total costs associated
wilh patural gas purchases. During the 2012/2013 fiscal year the PGA varied from a low of $4 86 (o a high of 56 43

WATER SYSTEMS

INSIDE CITY LIMITS

WATER RATES - RESIDENTIAL
0-2.000 gallons

Al over 2 000 galions

WATER RATES - COMMERCIAL RATES
Smatl Commaerical Rate 0-2 000 gallons
All over 2,000 gallons

Medium Commercial Rate 0-2 000 gallons
All over 2,000 gallons

Large Commercial Rate
All over 2,000 gallons

QUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

WATER RATES - RESIDENTIAL
0-2,000 galions

All over 2,000 galions

WATER RATES - COMMERCIAL RATES
Small Commerical Rate 0-2,000 gallons
All over 2,000 galions

Medium Commercial Rate 0-2,000 galions
All over 2,000 gatlons

Large Commercial Rate
All over 2.000 gailons

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS AT YEAR END;

SEWER RATES - RESIDENTIAL
0-2,000 galions
All over 2,000 gallons

SEWER RATES - COMMERCIAL RATES
Small Commerical Rate

Medium Commercial Rate

Large Commercial Rate

All over 2,000 galions

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS AT YEAR END:

$ 1250
$2.00 per 1,000 galicas

3 1400
%2 15 per 1,000 gallons

$ 16.00
$§2 25 per 1,000 gallons

$ 1800
$2 35 per 1,000 gallons

13 21.00
$3.50 per 1,000 galions

3 2250

53 75 per 1,000 gallons
24 50

$3 90 per 1,000 gallons
2650

54 015 per 1,000 gallons
9,717

$ 15.00

$4 00 per 1,000 galtons

-3 15.00
37.00
62.00
$§4 00 per 1,000 gatlons

3,402

Tha accompanying noles are an integral part of thess financial statamants.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE - CONTINUED
JUNE 10, 2014

Elsctric Departmant

Residential Rate Schedule - RS
Customer Charge - per defivery paunl per mantn H 1310
Enargy Charges . cents per k\Wh 009475

General Power Rate Schydule - G54
GSA (0.50 kw)

Customer Chargs - per dalwery point per monih - 1296
Energy Charges - psr kWh 010603
GSA-Z (511,000 kw)
Customer chaige - per detivery poinl pai manth ) 8903
Demand charge - per kw per mofith - First 55 bW
~ AQOanal RV 1210
Energy charge - par kw - Fust 15 000 KWh 0 10603
= Addiional kWh 906473
BSA-3 [1,000-5,000 kw)
Guslomer charge - par delvery pani pet month 3 22358
Demand charge - per kw pes month - First 1 000 kW 19
« Excess ovar 1.000 kW 1412
Energy charge - per kW 008647
LEL]
Customer charge - par delivery poinl pes month H 1.500 00
Adunistralive charge 350 00
Damand charges
Cnpagk:
All W - per kW per menih $ 16 45
Energy charge - cents per 4\Wh use of metered demand pef monith 009683
OffFeak
Al KW - per KWV per month ] 400
Energy ¢harga « cenis per kvwh for up 1o 425 hours 006215
Next 195 hWn 004348
Over 820 kvh 002764
G5C
Customer charga - per dalvery point par moenth H 1,500 00
Adrunistrative charge 350 00
Camang charges
Onpeak.
All KW - pet KW per menth 1549
Eneigy charge - cents per WAM wsa ol melered demand per month 009323
Otffeak
All KW - per kW per month 3 349
Enargy charge - cems per kY lof up 1o 425 hours 005954
Hext 195 ki 0 04088
Over 620 kWh e c2501
Gso
Customar charge - per dehvery point per maeih $ 1,500 00
Acmuusirative charge - 35000
Demand charges
Onpeak.
All KW - per kW per montn 5 1583
Energy charge - cents per KWh use of meterad demand per maaih Q09170
CHPeak
All R « per kW per manth 5 338
£neigy chargs - cents per XWh lor up 19 425 howry 0 05606
Nex1 195 kwh 003290
Over 520 kWWN 002244
MEE
Customer charge - per delivery poini par ment® H 1.500 00
Acmiriatralive charge s 350 00
Oermand charges
Onpaak
All %V - par kWY pef month 3 18 45
Energy charge - cants per kWh use &f melered demand per monih 0 0R1E6
OffPeak.
All KW - per kW per momth 5 400
Energy cnarge - cents per kW faf up ba 425 hours 004737
Naxt 195 kWh 0Q28M
Over 620 hWh 001286
Msc
Customer chargs - ped delivary point ped menth 3 1.500 00
Adnurustrative chargs ] 350 0¢
Oemand chargas
Onpeak
All kWY - per KW per monih H 1594
Energy charge - cents per kWh use of retered demand per month 008248
OtfPean,
AlLdWW - per kWY per month 3 349
Enargy charge - canis per kWh far up to 425 hours 004723
Next 195 hWh 002857
Qver 820 kWh Qo2
Ms0
Customner charge - par delivery paint per moath 3 1,500 00
Admrustrative charge $ 350 00
Demand charges
Onpeak
All kW - per kW per monin 3 1583
Energy charge . cents per kvWh use of melared demand par manih o 0soan
OtiPeak
All RV - per kWY per month H 3138
Energy charge - cenls per KWh tor up 1a 425 Feess n0asse
Nert 1595 kWh 002691
Over 620 kWh 01108
oL
Energy charge 06804

Tha sccompanying notes are an inlegial part of Mk ANaNCL SLItAMEnts.



CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-

Federal GrantoriPass- Federal Through
Through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's
Program Title Numb Number Expenditures
EEDERAL AWARDS
Department of Justice
JAG; Law Enforcament Equipment Grant 13738 “unavalagle” - 15,000
Butatproof Vest Partnership Program NfA "ur lable™ 1,719
Total Departiment of Justice 16.718
Department of Transporation - Gas System
Lexinglon Bypass NA STP-459(1) 121
Department of Transporation - Water Systems
Lexingion Bypass NIA STP-459(1) 528
Department of Transperation - General Government
Governor's Highway Safaty Office - High Visibiity 20600 Z-123HS-203 4,991
Governor's Highway Salety Office - Network Coordinatior 20600 Z2-14-GH5205 1"
Gavernors Highway Sataty Office - Network Coardinatar 20600 Z-13-GH5182 7.849
Total for CFDA # 20600 24671
Govermnors Highway Safety Otfice - Crash Interventon 20607 2-13-GH3183 10,291
Govemnor's Highway Safety Office - Crash Intervention 20807 2-14-GHS5204 17.902
28,193
Sate Routes ta School 20.205 Contract #090236 56 464
Total Department of Transportation 140077
Department of E mic and C Ity Develop
COBG DRG Sawer Line Realignment, contract #34874 14228 “unavailable™ 119.541
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 276.337
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Tennessee Department of Transportation - Gas System
Lawngton Bypass i STP-458({1) o
Tennessoe Depariment of Transpertation - Water Systems
Lexingion Bypass MIA STP-459(1) 157
State Law Enforcement Supplement - - 15,600
Stale Fire Grant Supplement - . 7.800
TOTAL STATE AWARDS 23,587
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 5 299.924

Note 1: Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of fedaral awards includes the federal grant activily of Town of Lexington,. Tennassee and
1s presented on the accrual basis of accounting

Note 2: Single Audit
Sngle Audd reports required by OMB Circutar A-133 have beer filed as part of \ha indnvidual audit raports of Lexington City Schools
Tha gwards that Lexngton City Schools received hava not been intiuded in the abova schedule

Note 3: Lexinglon Electric System
The awards that Lexington Elactne System recesved have not been included in the above schedule

The accompanying notes are In integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LEXINGTON, TENNESSEE
AWWA WLCC FREE WATER AUDIT SOFTWARE: REPCRTING WORKSHEET - UNAUDITIED
JUNE 30, 2014

AWWA WLCC Frea Water Audit Softwara: Reporting Wozksheet

Water Audit Jeport for:[Laxingten Utilitiss |
Reporting Tear:f 2014 J[ t/2013 - #r2014

Al volumes 10 be entered an: MILLION GALLONS {uS) PER YEAR

WATER SUFPLIED <¢ Entar grading inh <olumn §°

Volums Erom own sources: lend fudliyr peS/Yr)
Hadtaf Betel 4TCOYF AQJUATMSOL (shief pusitive valua): L-Tald
Hatar amported
Watar sxportad:

WATER SUPPLIED: l 1.098. 255' L2333

AUTHORIZED CONIUHPTION

Bllled setetwed.
Billed wmatsred:
Unbilled satarsd

Unballed d ;

AUTHORE EED CONSUMPTION : | Te0. 122| dsve

[} J47.T08) raivE
» o.211] My
N
5

2).7T87] Mai¥r
17,518| md/¥r

WATER LOSIEY (Water fypplisd - Authorized Consumption) 308.033) mo/re

Sppacact Losser Pont: Valus
Unauthoriied cobsumption: e

Dafault cptich selemsted EOr UNAULHGriZad consumption - a grading of 3 ia applisd but not displaysd

CUstomer Bataring LAsgrupacis [ 1108 vorve :
Systematic data hatdling wrIors: o
Chocea Ihis option 10
Appatent Lossan: anier & perceniage ol
bifted mwisred
eonsumption. This I+
NOT » delault voiue

Baal Lesasa iCustent Annual Rasl Losses gr CARL]
Rsal Losses = Watar Lotsed -~ Appareat Losses; wivr

WATER LOS1K3: | !ﬂ’.ﬂ!’l HiNfr

‘How: BEYENUE _HATTR
HON-REVINUE WMATER- 350, 138] worve
= Total Mater Loes « Unbilled Helsrsd ¢ Unbilled Unmetwied
ATSTIN DATA
Langth of mains: I 176, 0] mles
Wumber of agtiys AHD_pbactiyw estvice connections ) 10,931
Conhectliob densilty: 29| cona /mile msln
length of sarvice lihe: 18 0.8} re
Avsrage operating pressurs; Y | T Y] [P
COST DATA
Total snnual cost of operatihg water system; * $3,694,694) #/vaac
Custasr tetall URIT BOSE |MPiled Lo Appareer Eessend ' 31,71 [$/1000 gationa jusy
Varkable produdtion coat lapplisd ta Beal lesews] : ] 3763.06] 3raliion gallens

PERFORHANCE INDICATORY

Elnancial Jodicatera
Hon-rwvenus water as parcent by volume of Watwr Supplied. 31.84
Mon-revenus uatar as peccent by coat of cparating systes 9.9
5110, 168
1224 91¢

Qperational Rrficiescy Indicatoca
Apparent Lopses per service connecticn psr day: mgnunnlﬂmﬂmnlmy
Real Lossns per sarvice copsection par days: [ W/Algallans/connection/dsy
Msel Losses par lebgth of main per day®: gaunuruurdny
Feal Losims par #¥IVLICH Connaction pas day per psi B ,__‘ﬁuu“-fmeuulaﬂsu
Unavoidable Annual Real Lossss (UANLI: [ 116.93]million galioas/yser

From Above. Raal loasas = Current Annvel Mmel Losses (CARLI: [ 394 76]million galloss/ym

Infrastructure Leakage Indes (LI} (CARL/UARLY: [ 733]

* only the moet spplicabls ot these two jndicators will be celoulated
HATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY JCORE:

w++ YOUR SCORE IS: B2 out of 10Q *=+ |

» uayghted scile for the compomants af oonausption and water loes iv indiuded kA the ¢aleulstion of the Water Asdit Data Validity Beorw

Based on the information provided, awilit acoursesy ¢an ba improved by addressing the following componahts:

| 1: Mastar metar arror sdjustment }
{__2: Voluma from own sourtes |

3 Unauthoiized ]

The sccompanying notes ste an Integtsl part of thass financial statements. s



GODWIN -~
ASSOCIATES, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Q

408 Main Street, Savannah, Tennessee 38372
Phone 731,925,6547 Fax 731.925.9524

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and City Aldermen
Lexington, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Lexington, Tennessee (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Lexington, Tennessee's basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financia! reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficiency described below as Internal School Funds’ finding SAF
2007-01 to be a material weakness.

LEXINGTON GAS SYSTEM
NONE

LEXINGTON WATER SYSTEMS
NONE
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GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
NONE

SCHOOL FOOD AUTHORITY
NONE

INTERNAL SCHOOL FUNDS

FINDING SAF 2007 — 01 INADEQUATE SEGREGATION OF DUTIES
The duties of receiving cash, reconciling bank statements, preparing checks, and posting all transactions
are handled by each individual school's bookkeeper.

Section 4, Title 2, Page 4-6 of the TISUAPM details the minimum recommended internal controls. |t
explains that a good internal control structure cannot exist when the same person who receives cash
also prepares the deposit slips, makes deposits, and reconciles the bank statement. Someone other
than the person recording the cash receipts and preparing the deposit slips should make the deposit and
reconcile the bank statement.

Schools Still Deficient From the Prior Period Audit Finding: Caywood Elementary and Lexington
Middle School.

Recommendation: An effective internal control system provides for adequate segregation of duties.
Therefore, we recommend that the principals review the current level of control and modify where deemed
necessary. At a minimum, a second person should be selected to make deposits and reconcile the bank
statements.

Management's Response:

School System has employed full-time bookkeeper at each school and provided training program through
attendance at workshops, accounting system vendor and in-house support from central finance office.
Principals will review procedures and develop plans to implement segregation of duties within the
constraints of the limited office staff.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Lexington, Tennessee’s Response to Findings

City of Lexington, Tennessee’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described above. City of
Lexington, Tennessee’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
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PRIOR YEAR DISPOSITIONS

LEXINGTON GAS SYSTEM
2007-01 No Inventory of Capital Assets — corrected.

LEXINGTON WATER SYSTEMS
2007-01 No Inventory of Capital Assets — corrected.

SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND
2013-01 Expenditures Exceeded Budget — corrected.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
2004-06 Expenditures Exceeded Budget - corrected

Cﬂ; ) ‘%M ,PZL(.

October 15, 2014
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